
 

1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, JUNE 16, 2014 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 2, 2014: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Ordinance Amendment - Curfews.  Conduct a public hearing to hear citizen comment regarding the 

proposed amendment to Chapter 19, Offenses, Article V, Offenses Against Public Peace, Section 19-
89, Curfews for minors, to adjust the age of those affected by the curfew to match State law. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. Baker College Diesel Class Recognition.  Presentation of certificates of appreciation for the Baker 

College Diesel Class students that restored the City’s 1921 LaFrance Pumper truck to running 
condition.  
 

2. Toppermost Benefit.  Announcement by Fred Finnen of the Toppermost benefit concert presented by 
the Homeless Coalition and the Shiawassee-Owosso Kiwanis Club. 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
  



 

2 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Special Assessment District No. 2014-04.  Authorize Resolution No. 1 for Special Assessment District 

No. 2014-04 for the alley bounded by King Street, Clark Avenue, Oliver Street, and First Street for 
alley improvements.      

    
2. Special Assessment District No. 2014-05.  Authorize Resolution No. 1 for Special Assessment District 

No. 2014-05 for the alley bounded by Williams, Ball, Mason, and Water Streets for alley 
improvements.      

 
3. Special Assessment District No. 2014-06.  Authorize Resolution No. 1 for Special Assessment District 

No. 2014-06 for the bounded by Oliver, Ball, Williams, and Water Streets for alley improvements.     
  
4. Special Assessment District No. 2014-04.  Authorize Resolution No. 2 for Special Assessment District 

No. 2014-04, setting a Public Hearing for Monday, July 7, 2014 to receive citizen comments regarding 
the proposed improvements to the alley bounded by King Street, Clark Avenue, Oliver Street, and 
First Street.      
 

5. Special Assessment District No. 2014-05.  Authorize Resolution No. 2 for Special Assessment District 
No. 2014-05, setting a Public Hearing for Monday, July 7, 2014 to receive citizen comments regarding 
the proposed improvements to the alley bounded by Williams, Ball, Mason, and Water Streets.      
 

6. Special Assessment District No. 2014-06.  Authorize Resolution No. 2 for Special Assessment District 
No. 2014-06, setting a Public Hearing for Monday, July 7, 2014 to receive citizen comments regarding 
the proposed improvements to the alley bounded by Oliver, Ball, Williams, and Water Streets.      
 

7. First Reading and Set Public Hearing – Rezoning of East Main Street.  Conduct first reading and set 
a public hearing for Monday, July 7, 2014 to receive citizen comment regarding the proposal to 
rezone various parcels along East Main Street to comply with the Master Plan and ease future 
development of the area. 

 
8. First Reading and Set Public Hearing – Ordinance Amendment.  Conduct first reading and set a 

public hearing for Monday, July 7, 2014 to hear citizen comment regarding the proposed amendment 
to repeal Chapter 38, Zoning, Article II, Zoning Districts and Map, Section 38-33, Main Street office 
overlay district, to bring the zoning of the area into compliance with the Master Plan. 

 
9. Boards and Commissions Appointments.  Consider the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 

appointments: 
 

Name Board/Commission Term Expires 
Virginia Teich* Council on Aging 06-30-2017 
Matthew VanEpps* Downtown Historic District Commission 06-30-2017 
Scott Newman* Downtown Historic District Commission 06-30-2017 

*Indicates reappointment. 
 

10. 2014-15 Water & Sewer Rates.  Approve the proposed water and sewer rates for the 2014-15 fiscal 
year. 

 
11. Change Order No. 1 – DIG Grant, Part 2.  Authorize Change Order No. 1 to the contract with 

Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. for the DIG Grant, Part 2 increasing the contract amount by 
$3,900.00 for geotechnical investigation for new retaining wall construction along the James Miner 
River Trail. 
 

12. Contract Renewal – General Engineering Services.  Approve the required annual renewal of the 
General Engineering Services contracts with Spicer Group Inc., Fishbeck, Thompson Carr & Huber, 
Inc., and Fleis & Vandenbrink, Inc. to provide engineering services through June 30, 2015. 



 

3 
 

13. Professional Services Agreement – North Street Culvert Replacement Project.  Approve professional 
services agreement with Spicer Group, Inc. for engineering services in the form of a study and report 
for the North Street Culvert Replacement Project in the amount of $11,000.00.  
 

14. Purchase Authorization – Laserfiche Web Portal.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize 
the purchase of Laserfiche Avante Web Portal software from General Code in the amount of 
$10,055.00, and further authorize payment up to the contract amount upon satisfactory installation of 
the software. 
 

15. Bid Award – Ferric Chloride.  Accept low bid from PVS Technologies, Inc. for Ferric   
Chloride in the amount of $.53 per pound of iron, with an estimated annual contract of   
$38,160.00, and authorize payment based on the bid unit prices for actual quantities required   
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.    
 

16. Bid Award – Sodium Hypochlorite.  Accept low bid from Jones Chemical, Inc. for bulk Sodium   
Hypochlorite in the amount of $.69 per gallon plus $85 per truck load for split delivery with an   
estimated annual contract of $38,280.00 and authorize payment based on the bid unit prices   
for actual quantities required for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.    
 

17. Bid Award - Quicklime.  Accept low bid from Graymont Western Lime Corporation for   
Quicklime in the amount of $144.00 per ton, with an estimated annual contract of   
$115,200.00 and authorize payment based on the bid unit prices for actual quantities   
required for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
 

18. Bid Award – Sale of Used Street Sweeper.  Approve bid from Bell Equipment Company for the sale of 
one 2006 Elgin Street Sweeper in the amount of $17,500.00. 

 
19. Warrant No. 483.  Authorize Warrant No. 483 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Logicalis, Inc 
Network engineering support – 
May 2014 

General $ 9,123.00 

Mike & Son Asphalt Inc 
Release of retainer from  
Jackson Dr sidewalk project 

Streets $ 1,000.00 

Brown & Stewart PC 
Professional services –  
May 13, 2014 – June 9, 2014 

General $ 8,876.95 

 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. 2013-14 City Budget Amendment. Consider resolution amending the 2013-2014 budget incorporating 

adjustments made during the fiscal year (to be distributed by Monday). 
 
2. June 30th Early Meeting Time.  Consider moving the start time of the June 30th meeting to 7:00 p.m. 

to provide adequate time for discussion of agenda items. 
 
3. Osburn Lakes Development Presentations.  Presentations by Osburn Lakes Home Owners 

Association member Bryan Smith and City Manager Donald Crawford detailing the history of the 
Osburn Lakes development, the HOA’s role in the development, and recommendations for the future. 

 
4. Property Sale—1120-1170 Juniper Street -Twenty One Day Posting.  Authorize twenty-one (21)day 

posting period for sale of city owned property located at 1120-1170 Juniper Street to Laura and 
Leonard Birchmeier in the amount of $20,000.00. 

 



 

4 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. J. Parker, Historical Commission.  Letter of resignation. 
2. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  May 2014 Police Report. 
3. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  May 2014 Fire Report. 
4. Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of May 7, 2014. 
5. Historical Commission.  Minutes of May 12, 2014. 
6. Zoning Board of Appeals.  Minutes of May 20, 2014. 
7. Parks & Recreation Commission.  Minutes of May 27, 2014. 
8. Planning Commission.  Minutes of May 27, 2014. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, June 30, 2014 – Work Session 
Monday, July 07, 2014 – Regular Meeting 
 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Historical Commission (2), terms expiring December 31, 2016 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals 
with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing or calling 
the following:  Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867 or at (989) 725-
0500. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
   



Draft 1 06-02-2014 

OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 2, 2014                                                                                      7:30 P.M. 
 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR BENJAMIN R. FREDERICK 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  REVEREND RAY STRAWSER 
    MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE HOSPICE 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: MAYOR BENJAMIN R. FREDERICK 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor Pro-Tem Christopher T. Eveleth, 

Councilpersons Loreen F. Bailey, David B. Bandkau, Burton D. Fox,  
Elaine M. Greenway, and Robert J. Teich, Jr. 

 
ABSENT: None. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the agenda with the following change: 
 
Add Special Presentation 
 

1.  Corunna Public Schools – Certificate of Appreciation 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Fox and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF MAY 14, 2014 
 
Motion by Councilperson Bailey to approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 14, 2014 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 19, 2014 
 
Motion by Councilperson Fox to approve the Minutes of the Special Meeting of May 14, 2014 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
None. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
CORUNNA PUBLIC SCHOOLS –  RECOGNITION OF STUDENT PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC 

SAFETY TRAINING 
 
This item was added to the agenda. 
 
Public Safety Director Kevin Lenkart and Police Officer Matthew Fray presented a certificate of 
appreciation to the Corunna High School Drama Club to thank them for their participation in the recent 
emergency preparedness training exercise, assisting all county first responders by giving them a realistic 
hands-on experience in responding to a large scale emergency.  Corunna Superintendent David Moore 



Draft 2 06-02-2014 

and teachers Mike Windnagle and Robyn Lentz were on hand to receive the certificate on behalf of the 
Drama Club. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – CHAPTER 2, HISTORICAL COMMISSION 
 
The proposed amendment would adjust the stated purpose of the Historical Commission. 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding the proposed amendment to 
Chapter 2, Administration, Article IV, Boards and Commissions, Division 2, Historical Commission. 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
Councilperson Greenway indicated she felt the amendment was well written and would be a distinct 
improvement over the current language. 
 
Historical Properties Director Mitchell Speers indicated this amendment had been in the works for some 
time and he felt it would help to better define the mission of the Historical Commission going forward. 
 
Councilperson Bandkau inquired how the amendment would make the Commission more effective.  It 
was noted that one big change was to remove the directive to concentrate on the arts.  The amendment 
also removed some duties from the Commission with the idea they would be taken over by the Director. 
 
Whereas, the Council, after due and legal notice, has met and there being no one to be heard, motion by 
Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth  that the following ordinance be adopted:  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 750 
 

AMENDMENT TO DIVISION 2, CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION  
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN,  

HISTORICAL COMMISSION 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso has previously adopted ordinances creating and governing a historical 
commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city has changed since the adoption of the ordinances creating and governing the 
historical commission which necessitates the modification of Division 2. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS that Chapter 2, 
Administration, Article IV, Boards and Commissions, Division 2, Historical Commission, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Owosso, Michigan be amended as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.   REPEAL AND ADDITIONS.  That Chapter 2, Administration, Division 2, Historical 
Commission, of the City of Owosso Code of Ordinances, be amended by repealing and adding sections 
as follows: 
 
DIVISION 2. HISTORICAL COMMISSION  
 
Sec. 2-226.  Established. 
 
Sec. 2-227.  Purpose.  
 
Sec. 2-228.  Members; appointment, terms, etc. 
 
Sec. 2-229.  Reserved. 



Draft 3 06-02-2014 

 
Sec. 2-230.  General duties. 
 
Sec. 2-231.  Curwood Castle. 
 
Sec. 2-232.  Donations. 
 
Sec. 2-233.  Program sponsorship. 
 
Sec. 2-234.  Committees. 
 
Secs. 2-235--2-239.  Reserved. 
 
 
Sec. 2-226.  Established. 
 
The Owosso Historical Commission for the city is hereby established. 
 
The following Sec.  2-227.  Purpose shall be deleted in its entirety.  
 
Sec. 2-227.  Purpose. 
 
The purpose of the historical commission shall be to recognize and preserve and bring public attention to 
the historical treasures of the city and to promote an historical interest in the arts. (Art shall include, but 
not restricted to, architecture, dance, drama, literature, music, painting and sculpture.) 
 
The following shall be added as Sec.  2-227   Purpose. 
 
Sec. 2-227.  Purpose. 
    
The purpose of the historical commission shall be to recognize, preserve and bring public 
attention to the city's historical treasures.  
 
The following Sec.  2-228.  Members; appointment, terms, etc. shall be deleted in its entirety. 
 
Sec. 2-228.  Members; appointment, terms, etc. 
 
The members of the historical commission shall be appointed by the council. Membership shall consist of 
one (1) member from the council and eight (8) members at large appointed for three-year terms. 
Qualifications for the eight (8) members at large shall be the same as for the council. The terms of three 
(3) members at large shall expire as of December 31, 2013, and December 31, 2014, respectively, and 
the terms for the remaining two (2) at large members shall expire as of December 31, 2015. No member 
at large shall be appointed to the historical commission for more than two (2) successive terms unless 
one (1) year has elapsed after his or her second term expires. 
 
The following shall be added as Sec.  2-228  Members; appointment, terms, etc.  
 
The members of the historical commission shall be appointed by the city council.  Membership shall 
consist of one (1) member from the council and eight (8) members at large appointed for three-year 
terms.  No member at large shall be appointed to the historical commission for more than two (2) 
successive terms unless one (1) year has elapsed after his or her second term expires. 
 
The following Sec.  2-229.  Ex-officio members shall be deleted in its entirety.  
 
Sec. 2-229.  Ex-officio members. 
 



Draft 4 06-02-2014 

Upon recommendation of the historical commission, the council may appoint ex officio members       to 
the commission who do not have the qualifications for membership as required above. The exofficio 
members so appointed shall not have a vote on the historical commission, but shall sit in on an advisory 
capacity. 
 
The following Sec.  2-230.  General duties shall be deleted in its entirety 
 
Sec. 2-230. General duties. 
 
The historical commission shall be responsible for the permanent perpetuation of the history of the city 
through such means as may be developed by the commission and approved by the council and to 
include, but not be limited to:  
 

(1) Receipt, cataloging and preservation and security of articles of historic interest as 
determined by the commission. 

 
(2) Displaying for the public of artifacts through cooperation with other organizations and the 

council. 
 

(3) Encourage the preservation and perpetuation of historic architecture in the city, and 
particularly in such historic districts in the city as may be established from time to time in 
accordance with the principles set forth by the National Trust for Historic Preservation.  

 
The following shall be added as Sec.  2-230   General duties. 
 
Sec. 2-230. General duties. 
 
The historical commission shall be responsible for the permanent perpetuation of the city’s 
history through means developed by the commission, to include, but not be limited to:  
 

(1) Receipt, cataloging, preservation and security of articles of historic interest as 
determined by the commission. 

 
(2) Displaying of artifacts for the public through cooperation with other organizations 

and the city council. 
 

(3) Encouragement of the preservation and perpetuation of historic architecture in the 
city. 

 
The following Sec.  2-231.  Curwood Castle shall be deleted in its entirety.  
 
Sec. 2-231.  Curwood Castle. 
 
The historical commission shall be responsible for the permanent perpetuation and use of Curwood 
Castle and its adjoining park by such maintenance and operational programs and rules and regulations 
as may be proposed by the commission and approved by the council.  
 
The following shall be added as Sec.  2-231   Curwood Castle. 
 
Sec. 2-231.  Curwood Castle. 
 
The historical commission shall be responsible for the permanent perpetuation and use of 
Curwood Castle and nearby historic buildings by such maintenance and operational programs 
and rules and regulations as may be proposed by the commission.  
 
The following Sec.  2-232.  Donations shall be deleted in its entirety.  



Draft 5 06-02-2014 

 
Sec. 2-232. Donations. 
 
The historical commission shall be empowered to receive gifts and donations in the name of the city for 
the purposes of the commission, and shall have the sole right of determination of the use of such gifts 
and donations.  An annual audit of gifts, donations, and disposition at a regular meeting thereof.  
 
The following shall be added as Sec.  2-232   Donations. 
 
Sec. 2-232. Donations. 
 
The historical commission shall be empowered to receive gifts and donations of money and 
personal property in the name of the city for the purposes of the commission and shall have the 
sole right to determine the use of such gifts and donations.  Disposal of personal property shall 
be in accordance with Sec 2-347. 
 
The following Sec.  2-233.  Program sponsorship shall be deleted in its entirety.  
 
Sec. 2-233.  Program sponsorship. 
 
The historical commission shall sponsor programs for public appreciation of the arts.  
 
The following shall be added as Sec.  2-233   Program sponsorship. 
 
Sec. 2-233.  Program sponsorship. 
 
The historical commission shall sponsor programs for public appreciation of the city’s historical 
treasurers.  
 
The following Sec.  2-234.  Committees shall be deleted in its entirety. 
  
Sec. 2-234.  Committees. 
 
The historical commission shall be empowered to appoint such committees as may be found necessary 
to accomplish the purposes of this division. Qualifications of committee members shall be as by policy 
adopted by the commission and approved by the council.  
 
The following shall be added as Sec.  2-234   Committees. 
 
The historical commission shall be empowered to appoint committees as necessary.  
Qualifications of committee members shall be as by policy adopted by the commission.  
 
Sections 235--239.  Reserved 
 
SECTION 4.   SEVERABILITY.  The various sections and provisions of this ordinance shall be deemed to 
be severable, and should any section or provision of this ordinance be declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid the same shall not affect the validity of this 
ordinance as a whole or any section or provision of this ordinance other than the section or provision so 
declared to be unconstitutional or invalid.  
 
SECTION 5.   INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with 
the provisions of this Ordinance are repealed.  
 
SECTION 6.   EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective July 23, 2014. 
 



Draft 6 06-02-2014 

SECTION 7.   AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk’s office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Greenway. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Fox, Greenway, Bailey, Teich, Bandkau, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, and 

Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
  
CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, volunteered himself as a “stunt man” for future emergency training 
exercises as he has suffered numerous serious injuries over the years and he could lend his experience 
to add to the realism of the training.  He also encouraged everyone to thank emergency responders for 
what they do. 
 
Laura Birchmeier, 1140 Jackson Drive, indicated she and her husband had submitted the offer for the 
property on Juniper Street that is the subject of discussion tonight.  She said she believes her offer is 
more than fair when compared to the price of other lot sales in the subdivision.  She said she has wanted 
to purchase the property for a number of years and intends to build a new home on the combined lots. 
 
Richard Theile, 1331 Jackson Drive, president of the Osburn Lakes Condominium Association, said he 
like the idea of selling the lots but wondered if the property would be considered part of the Association as 
it is outside the boundaries for Phase 1 of the subdivision, if so he felt the Association should be more 
directly involved in the transaction.  He also encouraged the City to consider amending the Master Deed 
for the development to allow for larger lots and combined lots in an effort to entice sales, though he 
cautioned that if the undeveloped area is to be included in the Association that consistency is a must. 
 
Mayor Frederick thanked the Veterans and the citizens that turned out for the Veteran’s Day Parade.  He 
also thanked the Baker College Maintenance Department and Life in Christ Church for their work on the 
Helping Hand project at 805 South Cedar Street saying they all worked very hard to improve the home for 
the Veteran living there. 
 
Councilperson Fox reported that the Baker College Diesel mechanics class had successfully restored the 
1921 LaFrance pumper truck to running condition and the vehicle would be on display during the Train 
Expo to help raise funds for the proposed firemen’s memorial.  He also noted volunteers would be 
needed to help with fundraising. 
 
Councilperson Bailey said the SRI volunteer coordinator had expressed her thanks to the City for working 
with them so diligently on the Train Expo.  She also inquired whether the City had ever sprayed for 
mosquitos in the past. 
 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Crawford indicated he had no knowledge of the City spraying for mosquitos in the past.  He 
said fogging is many times not very effective and the targeting of mosquito breeding areas usually yields 
better results.  There was discussion regarding posting something on the website to encourage people to 
remove standing water and whether fogging could be a possibility. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 



Draft 7 06-02-2014 

First Reading and Set Public Hearing – Ordinance Amendment.  Conduct first reading and set a public 
hearing for Monday, June 2, 2014 to hear citizen comment regarding the proposed amendment to 
Chapter 19, Offenses, Article V, Offenses Against Public Peace, Section 19-89, Curfews for minors to 
adjust the age of those affected by the curfew to match State law as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 68-2014 
 

SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING FOR 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-89 (b) 

 OF THE OWOSSO CITY CODE REGARDING 
 CURFEWS FOR MINORS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has an ordinance on its books prohibiting minors age 17 and under from 
loitering and congregating in public areas at unacceptable hours; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Michigan defines minors as being 16 years of age and under; and 
 
WHEREAS, this discrepancy should be remedied to avoid conflict and confusion. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS that Chapter 19, 
Offenses, Article V, Offenses against public peace, Section 19-89, Curfews for minors, be amended as 
follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 19-89 (b) of the Owosso City Code is hereby amended to read: 
 
Sec. 19-89(b). Curfews for minors. 
 
No minor, seventeen (17) sixteen (16) years of age or under, shall loiter, idle or congregate 
on any public area, street, highway, alley or park between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 
6:00 a.m. immediately following, except where the minor is accompanied by a parent or 
guardian, or an adult delegated by the parent or guardian to accompany the minor, or where 
the minor is upon an errand or other legitimate business directed by his parent or guardian. 
 
SECTION 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective twenty days after passage. 
 
SECTION 3.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk’s office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  
 
SECTION 4.   PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing is set for Monday, June 16, 2014 at 7:30 p.m. for 
the purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed ordinance amendment. 
 
Boards and Commissions Appointments.  Consider the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 
appointments: 

 
Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Richard Williams* Building Authority 06-30-2017 
David Acton* DDA/Main Street Board 06-30-2018 
Kenn Cushman* DDA/Main Street Board 06-30-2018 
Meredith Landino* DDA/Main Street Board 06-30-2018 
Christopher Eveleth* Zoning Board of Appeals 06-30-2017 

*Indicates reappointment 
 

Traffic Control Order No. 1315.  Approve Traffic Control Order No. 1315 authorizing the removal of four 
parallel parking spaces on the east side of the 100 block of North Park Street to accommodate revised 
lane assignments for south-bound traffic. 

 



Draft 8 06-02-2014 

Contract Adjustment – Curwood Castle Couches.  Approve adjustment to the contract with Melco Interiors 
of Owosso for the creation of two custom couches for Curwood Castle to reflect the fact the vendor 
requires a 50% deposit at the time of the order as follows: 
 

AMENDED RESOLUTION NO. 27-2014 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE PURCHASE OF CUSTOM COUCHES FOR CURWOOD CASTLE 

FROM MELCO INTERIORS OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 
  
WHEREAS, the Owosso Historical Commission, a Charter Commission of the City of Owosso, has been 
charged with the responsibility of maintaining the historic buildings owned by the City, and of promoting 
the appreciation of architecture and history to the general public and citizens alike and collecting and 
displaying object of historical interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso Historical Commission has determined that Owosso’s most iconic building is 
Curwood Castle, and that Curwood as an author and conservationist is largely unappreciated and 
undervalued; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso Historical Commission determined by vote to elevate Curwood Castle to a first 
rate museum by increasing interest both in the man Curwood and his body of works, and the historic 
building itself; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso Historical Commission approved by vote to refurbish the Castle according to 
existing photos of the Great Room with Curwood present; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso Historical Commission voted to earmark monies earned from the Owosso 
Historic Home Tour to recreate the atmosphere and setting of Curwood’s time at his Castle, replicating 
the interior furnishings according to the existing photos; and 
 
WHEREAS, Owosso Historical Commission the has selected for purchase custom-made sofas as some 
of the first items to be added to furnish the Castle; and 
 
WHEREAS, the has Owosso Historical Commission selected local vendor Melco Interiors to perform this 
work based on historically related products they have produced or refurbished in the past. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan, that:  
 

FIRST: The Owosso City Council concurs with the Historical Commission that it is beneficial to 
preserve and promote the history of one of the City’s foremost citizens and to increase 
tourism through careful additions to the collection of Curwood Castle. 

 
SECOND:  The Council hereby approves of the purchase of two custom sofas from Melco Interiors of 

Owosso for display in Curwood Castle.  
 
THIRD:  Expenses in the amount of $5,389.20 shall be paid from the Owosso Historical 

Commission Historic Home Tour Fund. 
 
FOURTH: It is hereby authorized the payment of a $2,694.60 deposit with the balance of 

$2,964.60 to be paid upon satisfactory completion of the project. 
 
Change Order No. 1 – DIG Project Part 1 & 3.  Approve Change Order No. 1 to the contract with Fleis & 
Vandendbrink Engineering Inc. for the DIG Project, Parts 1 & 3, to add additional work beyond the scope 
of the original contract in the amount of $4,650.00 as follows: 
 



Draft 9 06-02-2014 

RESOLUTION NO. 69-2014 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER #1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. FOR  

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR DOWNTOWN INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT PROJECT 
PARTS 1&3 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with Fleis & 
Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. on April 21, 2014 for Engineering Services for the Downtown Infrastructure 
Grant Project Parts 1&3; and 
 
WHEREAS the city requests additional services of the consultant to analyze existing site conditions of the 
project site(s) and finds it necessary to perform additional work beyond the original contractual scope of 
services; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to amend the contract with Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. for a cost 
to the City of Owosso of $4,650.00. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Amendment #1 to the Contract between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and Fleis & Vandenbrink, Inc. 

 
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amount of 

$57,693.00 to Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. upon successful completion of 
stated work. The above expenses shall be paid from the Contractual Services Fund, 
Account No. 494-901-965.585.   

 
Change to Standard Lighting Contract.  Approve amendment to the Standard Lighting Contract with 
Consumers Energy to reflect the installation of one standard high intensity discharge light at the 
intersection of Hopkins Lake Drive and Palmer Avenue and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
appropriate documents as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 70-2014 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR CHANGE IN STANDARD LIGHTING CONTRACT 
 
Consumers Energy Company is authorized as of May 29, 2014, by the City of Owosso, to make changes, 
as listed below, in the lighting system(s) covered by the existing Standard Lighting Contract between the 
Company and the City of Owosso, dated October 01, 2013.   
 

1. General Service Unmetered Lighting Rate GUL, Standard High Intensity Discharge as identified 
in Exhibit A. 

Except for the changes in the lighting system(s) as herein authorized, all provisions of the aforesaid 
Standard Lighting Contract dated October 01, 2013, shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
RESOLVED, that it is hereby deemed advisable to authorize Consumers Energy Company to make 
changes in the lighting service as provided in the Standard Lighting Contract between the Company and 
the City of Owosso, dated October 01, 2013, in accordance with the Authorization for Change in Standard 
Lighting Contract dated as of June 2, 2014, heretofore submitted to and considered by this Council; and 
 
RESOLVED, further, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and are authorized to execute such authorization 
for change on behalf of the City. 



Draft 10 06-02-2014 

 
Change Order No. 1-Final – 2014 South Park Street Improvement Project, Phase 1.  Approve Change 
Order No. 1-Final to the 2014 South Park Street Improvement Project, Phase 1 contract with Perrin 
Construction Co., Inc., increasing the amount of the contract $2,581.09 for additional labor and materials 
needed to complete the project as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 71-2014 
  

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1-FINAL TO THE CONTRACT FOR 
2014 SOUTH PARK STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, PHASE 1 

WITH PERRIN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
  
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has approved a contract with Perrin 
Construction Co., Inc. on February 18, 2014 in the amount of $46,486.00 for the 2014 South Park Street 
Improvement Project, Phase 1 ; and   
  
WHEREAS, additional materials and labor were required to complete the project pursuant to Change 
Order #1-Final in the amount of $2,581.09 (i.e. furnish and install pea stone in existing pit next to 
Lebowsky Center, drill holes in bottom of pit, furnish and install two layers of geotextile.), increasing the 
contract to $49,067.09 ; and  
 
WHEREAS, the work is now complete and eligible for payment. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST:         The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to amend the contract with Perrin Construction Co. Inc., for a cost 
to the City of Owosso of $2,581.09, increasing the original contract from $46,486.00 
to $49,067.09.  

  
SECOND:    The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to approve Change Order #1-

Final between the City of Owosso, Michigan and Perrin Construction Co., Inc. in the 
amount of $49,067.09. 

  
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the proceeds of the 2010 General 

Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds. 
 

Payment Authorization – 2014 South Park Street Improvement Project, Phase 1.  Approve Final Payment 
to Perrin Construction Co., Inc. for work completed on the 2014 South Park Street Improvement Project, 
Phase 1, including Change Order No. 1-Final, in the amount of $17,998.82 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 72-2014 
  

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO PERRIN CONSTRUCTION CO.  INC.,  
 FOR WORK COMPLETED ON THE 

 2014 SOUTH PARK STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, PHASE 1 
AS AMENDED BY CHANGE ORDER #1-FINAL 

  
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has approved a contract with Perrin 
Construction Co., Inc. for the 2014 South Park Street Improvement Project, Phase 1 and found it 
necessary and beneficial to amend the original contract as detailed in Change Order #1-Final; and 
  
WHEREAS, the work is complete and is now eligible for payment; and 
 



Draft 11 06-02-2014 

WHEREAS, the City project manager recommends Pay Estimate #3-Final in the amount of $17,998.82 for 
work completed through April 21, 2014, as agreed to by Perrin Construction Co., Inc. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST:         The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to amend the contract with Perrin Construction Co. Inc., for work 
completed on the 2014 South Park Street Improvement Project, Phase 1, as 
amended by Change Order #1-Final. 

  
SECOND:    The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Perrin 

Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $17,998.82 as detailed on the attached 
Payment Estimate #3-Final as authorized by Council on June 2, 2014. 

  
THIRD:         The above expenses shall be paid from 2010 General Obligation Unlimited Tax 

Bonds. 
 

New Front End Loaders – Contract Adjustment.  Adjust the contract with AIS Construction Equipment 
Corporation for the purchase of two new John Deere Loaders, bringing the total contract to $282,558.00, 
to reflect the fact the City will no longer be trading in the current loaders but will be selling them on the 
open market as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 73-2014 
AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 10-2014  

  
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE CONTRACT  

WITH AIS CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT CORPORATION FOR THE PURCHASE  
OF TWO NEW JOHN DEERE LOADERS  

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved the purchase of two new John 
Deere loaders for a total of $218,558.00 from AIS Construction Equipment Corporation on February 3, 
2014; and  
  
WHEREAS, this contract price reflected a trade in value of $64,000.00 for two used loaders; and  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso decided to use the MITN online auction service to sell the two used 
loaders, in an effort to secure a higher price for the equipment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the original contract with AIS Construction Equipment Corporation must be amended to 
reflect the adjusted purchase price without credit for trade in equipment.  
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
  

FIRST:  The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to adjust the contract with AIS Construction Equipment Corporation for the 
purchase of two new John Deere loaders to $282,558.00, removing the trade in credit of 
$64,000.  

  
SECOND:  The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to execute appropriate documents 

to complete the adjustment.  
  
THIRD:  The Accounts Payable Department is hereby authorized to adjust the Purchase Order for 

payment to AIS Construction Equipment Corporation in an amount not to exceed 
$282,558.00 upon satisfactory receipt of the named equipment.  



Draft 12 06-02-2014 

 
Bid Award – Sale of Used Front End Loaders.  Approve the bid of Nolan’s Farm Equipment, Inc. for two 
1999 John Deere Front End Loaders (#3608 & #3592) in the amount of $58,600.00 as follows: 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 74-2014 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS 

FOR THE SALE OF TWO (2) USED JOHN DEERE FRONT END LOADERS 
TO NOLAN’S FARM EQUIPMENT, INC. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has established a purchasing cycle to 
maintain a healthy work vehicle fleet; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of this purchasing cycle older vehicles are retired and sold to the highest bidder; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso used the MITN online auction service to sell this equipment at a 
processing fee of 5% of the bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, a bid solicitation for said used equipment was advertised and responsive bids were received 
from Joe Nolan of Nolan’s Farm Equipment, Inc. in the amount of $75,500.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the bid one of the loaders suffered severe mechanical problems, and Nolan’s 
Farm Equipment, Inc. negotiated a reduced bid of $58,600.00 as follows: 
 

$20,000.00 for one (1) 1999 John Deere Front End Loader, #DW544HX573608 
$38,600.00 for one (1) 1999 John Deere Front End Loader, #DW544HX573592  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to sell the named equipment to the high bidder as detailed above.  

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to execute appropriate documents 

to complete the sale of these items. 
 

Purchase Authorization – File Server.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize the purchase of 
one HP ProLiant DL360p Gen8 rack mountable file server for the IT Department through the National 
Joint Powers Alliance contract with CDW-G in the amount of $8,035.50, and further authorize payment up 
to the contract amount upon satisfactory receipt of the equipment as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 75-2014 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF A NEW FILE SERVER  
FROM CDW-G 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan finds it necessary and advisable to 
purchase a rack mountable file server for the Information Technology department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, technical staff have determined the best possible price meeting the city’s 
specifications for the file server would be to purchase through the National Joint Powers Alliance; and 
 
WHEREAS, city ordinance section 2-345(3) provides for an exception to competitive bidding when the 
best interest of the city would be served by jointly purchasing with another governmental unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, this purchase is a budgeted item in the Information Technology department, account number 



Draft 13 06-02-2014 

101-258-978000.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to purchase an HP ProLiant DL360p Gen8 rack mountable file 
server from the National Joint Powers Alliance contract with CDW-G for a cost not to 
exceed $8,035.50 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached,  
 

THIRD: The above expenses are hereby authorized to be paid from the General Fund, 
account number 101-258-978000 upon delivery and departmental verification of 
contract compliance. 

 
Purchase Authorization - Castle Floor Refinishing.  Waive competitive bidding requirements, authorize a 
contract with Accent Hardwood Floors, Inc. for the refinishing of the wood floors at Curwood Castle in the 
amount of $7,831.60 and further authorize payment up to the contract amount per the terms of the 
estimate as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 76-2014 
 

AUTHORIZING THE WAVIER OF THE BID PROCESS AND APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT WITH 
ACCENT HARDWOOD FLOORS, INC., 

FOR REPAIR AND REFINISHING OF THE WOOD FLOORS AND STEPS OF 
CURWOOD CASTLE 

    
WHEREAS,   the Owosso Historical Commission, a Charter Commission of the City of Owosso, has been 
charged with the responsibility of maintaining the historic buildings owned by the City, and of promoting 
the appreciation of architecture and history to the general public and citizens alike and collecting and 
displaying objects of historical interest; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the Owosso Historical Commission has determined that Owosso’s most iconic building is 
Curwood Castle; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Owosso Historical Commission is determined to elevate Curwood Castle to a first rate 
museum by increasing interest both in the man Curwood and his body of works, and the historic building 
itself; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the Owosso Historical Commission determined by vote to have Dick Martin, of Accent 
Hardwood Floors, Inc. repair and refinish the wood flooring and steps of Curwood Castle; and 
 
WHEREAS,   there are sufficient funds in the current budget of the Owosso Historical Commission’s 
Curwood Castle/Buildings and Grounds account for such work. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan, that:   
 

FIRST: the City of Owosso determines it beneficial to preserve and promote the history of one of 
its foremost citizens and to increase tourism through the careful restoration of Curwood 
Castle.  

 



Draft 14 06-02-2014 

SECOND: that the competitive bid process be waived and that a contract be awarded to Dick Martin, 
of Accent Hardwood Floors, Inc. for repair and refinishing of the wood floors and steps of 
Curwood Castle in the amount of $7,831.60.    

 
THIRD: the Accounts Payable department is authorized to issue payment up to the amount of 

$7,831.60, per the terms of the attached Estimate. 
 
FOURTH: funds for said work shall be paid from the Owosso Historical Commission/Curwood 

Castle Buildings and Grounds. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Greenway, Teich, Bandkau, Bailey, Fox, and 

Mayor Frederick.  
 
NAYS: None. 
 
Mayor Frederick thanked those that volunteered their time to serve on City boards and commissions. 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION – REVISED 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to authorize rescinding Resolution No. 64-2014 and approving a 
revised General Appropriations Resolution reflecting a downward adjustment in the millage levied for 
SATA as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 77-2014 
 

GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION - 2014-15 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 8, Section 5 of the Owosso City Charter, the City Council has received 
the proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014 and held a public hearing on May 5, 2014; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council to levy ad valorem and specific property taxes for general 
operating purposes of the City; for payment of principal and interest on voted indebtedness; and for 
special voted millage to support public transportation, based on the budget summary for fiscal year 2014-
15 attached hereto and made part hereof; and 
  
WHEREAS, the general property tax laws, specifically, MCL 211.34(d) provide for a compound millage 
reduction calculation applied to the City Charter maximum authorized operating millage rate of fifteen 
mills per thousand of taxable value; and 
 
WHEREAS, this millage reduction commonly known as the Headlee rollback results in a maximum 
operating millage rate of 13.0370 for which the City is authorized to levy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Garbage Disposal Plants Act, MCL 123.261, allow for the City to levy up to three mills on 
all taxable property to provide for the collection and disposal of certain solid wastes; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that a levy of one mill per $1,000 of taxable value is required to 
operate a solid waste recycling program; and   
 



Draft 15 06-02-2014 

WHEREAS, the voters approved, by a majority, in an election held on August 7, 2012, a millage, not to 
exceed .3333 mills per $1,000 of taxable value to support public transportation; and  
 
WHEREAS, the board of the Shiawassee Area Transportation Authority have requested funding from the 
City equating to a millage of .2634 mills per thousand of taxable value for which the City is authorized to 
levy; and   
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that a millage rate of .2728 mills per thousand of taxable value is 
required for the annual debt service on unlimited tax general obligations bonds;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the tax levy for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2014 
shall be the rate of 14.5732 per $1,000 of taxable value of the 2014 assessment roll as approved by the 
Board of Review; and  
 
The total levy shall be composed of the constituent rates for purposes and with revenue yields described 
as follows: 
   
GENERAL OPERATING  13.0370  $3,122,191 
GARBAGE DISPOSAL      1.0000                       $239,486 
DEBT SERVICE       .2728                               $65,332 
SATA         .2634                   $65,435 
     14.5732               $3,492,444 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Greenway. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Bandkau, Bailey, Greenway, Fox, Teich, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, and 

Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
PROPERTY SALE DISCUSSION – OSBURN LAKES UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY 
 
The Council discussed the potential sale of city owned property at 1120-1170 Juniper Street located in 
the yet undeveloped portion of the Osburn Lakes Subdivision.  There was talk regarding who owns the 
streets in the subdivision, what condo association dues are used for, whether to include the property in 
the existing association, and getting more information on the history of the development.   
 
Motion by Councilperson Bailey to authorize the 21-day posting for the property at 1120-1170 Juniper 
Street. 
 
There was debate as to whether the sale should be officially posted now or if the posting should wait until 
Council has more information on the bigger picture of the development.   
 
Councilperson Fox asked if Councilperson Bailey would consider amending her motion to include a 
request for an agenda item on the June 16th agenda to discuss the matter further. 
 
Councilperson Bailey agreed to the friendly amendment and the motion was supported by Councilperson 
Fox. 
 
Discussion continued regarding the timing of the 21-day posting and allowing more time for Council to 
educate themselves on the project. 
 
Councilperson Bailey rescinded her motion. 
 



Draft 16 06-02-2014 

Motion by Councilperson Teich to set a staff presentation on the history of the Osburn Lakes 
development for the June 16th meeting, along with consideration to authorize the 21-day posting period.  
Further, discussion of the development will be added to the June 30th planning session agenda.   
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilperson Greenway, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Bandkau, Teich, and 

Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS:  Councilpersons Fox and Bailey. 
 
City Manager Crawford indicated he would try to get information on the development to Council within the 
next few days. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, expressed his concern about the collapse in an old abandoned 
sewer line in the Matthews Building parking lot presenting a danger during Curwood.  He also 
encouraged people to build bat houses to help combat mosquitos. 
 
Ray Strawser indicated he now lives in Saginaw County and they spray periodically for mosquitos.  He 
said he felt it was very effective though there may be some health issues to consider with spraying. 
 
Councilperson Bandkau noted that with the coming Curwood Festival Owosso will be experiencing the 
end of an era with the final TMB performance under long-time band director Carl Knipe. 
 
Councilperson Fox encouraged people to plant marigolds to chase mosquitos away. 
 
Councilperson Bailey inquired about the status of the way-finding signs saying it would be nice to have 
them up for Curwood and the Train Expo.  It was noted the frames have been constructed but the DDA 
ran out of money to purchase the inserts.   
 
NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, June 16, 2014 
 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth for adjournment at 8:49 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Fox and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
202 S. WATER   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·   
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   May 22, 2014   
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Change in City Ordinance 19-89(b)  
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
I recommend Council approve the attached resolution setting a public hearing for Jun 16th, 2014 
to receive citizen comment regarding the proposal to change Owosso City Ordinance 19-89 (b).  
 
Background: 
 
The current Owosso City Ordinance 19-89 (b) regarding curfew for minors says that minors (17) 
seventeen years of age may not be out in a public area between 12:00 midnight and 6:00 am. 
MCLA 722-752 defines a minor as being 16 years of age and under. The amended Owosso City 
Ordinance would make us consistent with Michigan State Law.  

 
 
 

AKKirkland
Text Box
Memo reprinted from the meeting of June 2, 2014



 
 ORDINANCE NO.  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-89 (b) 
 OF THE OWOSSO CITY CODE REGARDING 
 CURFEWS FOR MINORS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has an ordinance on its books prohibiting minors age 17 and under from 
loitering and congregating in public areas at unacceptable hours; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Michigan defines minors as being 16 years of age and under; and 
 
WHEREAS, this discrepancy should be remedied to avoid conflict and confusion. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS that Chapter 19, 
Offenses, Article V, Offenses against public peace, Section 19-89, Curfews for minors, be amended as 
follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 19-89 (b) of the Owosso City Code is hereby amended to read: 
 
Sec. 19-89(b). Curfews for minors. 
 
No minor, sixteen (16) years of age or under, shall loiter, idle or congregate on any public area, 
street, highway, alley or park between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 6:00 a.m. immediately 
following, except where the minor is accompanied by a parent or guardian, or an adult 
delegated by the parent or guardian to accompany the minor, or where the minor is upon an 
errand or other legitimate business directed by his parent or guardian. 
 
SECTION 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective July 7, 2014. 
 
SECTION 3.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk’s office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  
 
 
 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
 
DATE: June 16, 2014 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: 2014 Public Alley Paving Program – Special Assessment Resolution No. 1 
 
 
 
When deemed necessary, the city conducts an alley paving program. Public alleys are selected for 
inclusion in the program either by citizen initiated petition or by selection by the city.  A special assessment 
is the process by which a portion of the cost for making a local improvement is assessed against a property 
owner based upon the value that the property receives from the improvement.  The city assumes the 
remaining portion of the cost (public benefit portion).  In recent years, the city has spread this amount as 
60% public benefit and 40% property benefit.  The city usually finances special assessments over 10 years 
at 6 percent interest.  The property owner can pay an assessment in one lump sum or in installments over 
the 10 year period.  

The special assessment process has five steps, each having its own purpose and accompanying resolution.  

Step One/Resolution No. 1 identifies the special assessment districts, directs the city manager to estimate 
project costs and the amounts to be specially assessed, and determines the life of the proposed 
improvements.  

Step Two/Resolution No. 2 sets the date for the hearing of necessity on the projects.  It directs notices to be 
sent to each affected property owner detailing the proposed project, notifying them of the public hearing 
date, and the estimated amount of their assessment.  

Step Three/Resolution No. 3 documents the hearing of necessity.  This hearing provides affected residents 
with the opportunity to comment on whether they feel the project is necessary and of the proper scale.  
After hearing citizen comment on the project the city council has three options:  if they agree that the project 
should proceed as proposed, the district is established and staff is directed to go on with the next steps of 
the proposed project, including obtaining bids; if they feel the project should go forward, but with some 
adjustments they may direct staff to make those adjustments and proceed; if they feel the project is not 
warranted and should not proceed at all they would simply fail to act on Resolution No. 3, effectively 
stopping the process. 

Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated assessment amounts are 
adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  A second public hearing is 
set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  Each property owner is sent a 
second notice containing the date and time of the public hearing and the amount of the proposed 
assessment for their property.  

 

 
 
 
 



Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment roll and 
sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the opportunity to 
argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to the benefit they 
receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides adjustments need to be 
made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if they feel all the assessments are fair and 
equitable they may pass the resolution as written.   

Tonight the council will be considering Resolution No. 1 for each proposed district as a part of the Consent 
Agenda.  Because this item simply introduces the proposed districts and directs staff to develop estimates it 
is typically handled without discussion of each individual item.   
 
Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 1 and Resolution No. 2 for the following three proposed 
projects: 
 

The public alley that exists in Block 2 of H N and S A Williams Addition, City of Owosso, from First 
Street southeast to Clark Avenue.  (Bounded by King Street, Clark Avenue, Oliver Street, and First 
Street.) 
 
The public alley that exists in Block 13 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, from W. Mason Street north 
to W. Williams Street.  (Bounded by Williams, Ball, Mason, and Water Streets.) 

 
The public alley that exists in Block 4 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, from W. Williams Street north 
to W. Oliver Street.  (Bounded by Oliver, Ball, Williams, and Water Streets.) 

 
 



Special Assessment Resolution No. 2 for Block 2 of H N and S A Williams Addition, Public Alley 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2014-04 Block 2 of H N and S A Williams Addition, Public 

Alley, from First Street to Clark Avenue 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has ordered the City Manager to prepare a report for public improvement, 
more particularly hereinafter described; and 
 

Block 2 of H N and S A Williams Addition, Public Alley, from First Street to Clark Avenue 
Alley Resurfacing 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager prepared said report and the same has been filed with the City Council as 
required by the Special Assessment Ordinance of the City of Owosso and the Council has reviewed said 
report. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The plans and estimate of cost and the report of the City Manager for said public improvement 

shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk and shall be available for public examination. 
 
2. The City Council hereby determines that the Public Improvement hereinafter set forth is 

necessary. 
 
3. The City Council hereby approves the estimate of cost of said public improvement to be 

$14,042.60 and determines that $5,617.04 thereof shall be paid by special assessment imposed 
on the lots and parcels of land more particularly hereinafter set forth, which lots and parcels of 
land are hereby designated to be all of the lots and parcels of land to be benefited by said 
improvements and determines that $8,425.56 of the cost thereof shall be paid by the City at large 
because of benefit to the City at large. 

 
4. The City Council hereby determines that the portion of the cost of said public improvement to be 

specially assessed shall be assessed in accordance with the benefits to be received. 
 
5. The City Council shall meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, July 7, 2014 

for the purpose of hearing all persons to be affected by the proposed public improvement. 
 
6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the time and place of the hearing to be 

published once in The Argus Press, the official newspaper of the City of Owosso, not less than 
seven (7) days prior to the date of said hearing and shall further cause notice of said hearing to 
be sent by first class mail to each owner of property subject to assessment, as indicated by the 
records in the City Assessor's Office as shown on the general tax roll of the City, at least (10) full 
days before the time of said hearing, said notice to be mailed to the addresses shown on said 
general tax rolls of the City. 

 
7. The notice of said hearing to be published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT HEARING 
CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 

 
TO THE OWNERS OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 
 

Block 2 of H N and S A Williams Addition, Public Alley, from First Street to Clark Avenue 
 



 TAKE NOTICE that the City Council intends to acquire and construct the following described 
public improvement: Alley Resurfacing. 
 
The City Council intends to defray apart or all of the cost of the above-described public improvement by 
special assessment against the above described property. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that City Council has caused plans and an estimate of the cost and report for 
the above described public improvement to be prepared and made by the City Manager and the same is 
on file with the City Clerk and available for public examination. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the City Council will meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers, 
Owosso, Michigan at 7:30 o'clock p.m. on Monday, July 7, 2014 for the purpose of hearing any person to 
be affected by the proposed public improvement.



Special Assessment Resolution No. 2 for Block 13 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, Public Alley 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2014-05 Block 13 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, Public 

Alley, from Mason Street to Williams Street 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has ordered the City Manager to prepare a report for public improvement, 
more particularly hereinafter described; and 
 

Block 13 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, Public Alley, from Mason Street to Williams 
Street 
Alley Resurfacing 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager prepared said report and the same has been filed with the City Council as 
required by the Special Assessment Ordinance of the City of Owosso and the Council has reviewed said 
report. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The plans and estimate of cost and the report of the City Manager for said public improvement 

shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk and shall be available for public examination. 
 
2. The City Council hereby determines that the Public Improvement hereinafter set forth is 

necessary. 
 
3. The City Council hereby approves the estimate of cost of said public improvement to be 

$19,136.70 and determines that $7,654.68 thereof shall be paid by special assessment imposed 
on the lots and parcels of land more particularly hereinafter set forth, which lots and parcels of 
land are hereby designated to be all of the lots and parcels of land to be benefited by said 
improvements and determines that $11,482.02 of the cost thereof shall be paid by the City at 
large because of benefit to the City at large. 

 
4. The City Council hereby determines that the portion of the cost of said public improvement to be 

specially assessed shall be assessed in accordance with the benefits to be received. 
 
5. The City Council shall meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, July 7, 2014 

for the purpose of hearing all persons to be affected by the proposed public improvement. 
 
6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the time and place of the hearing to be 

published once in The Argus Press, the official newspaper of the City of Owosso, not less than 
seven (7) days prior to the date of said hearing and shall further cause notice of said hearing to 
be sent by first class mail to each owner of property subject to assessment, as indicated by the 
records in the City Assessor's Office as shown on the general tax roll of the City, at least (10) full 
days before the time of said hearing, said notice to be mailed to the addresses shown on said 
general tax rolls of the City. 

 
7. The notice of said hearing to be published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT HEARING 
CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 

 
TO THE OWNERS OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 
 



Block 13 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, Public Alley, from Mason Street to Williams 
Street 

 
 TAKE NOTICE that the City Council intends to acquire and construct the following described 
public improvement: Alley Resurfacing. 
 
The City Council intends to defray apart or all of the cost of the above-described public improvement by 
special assessment against the above described property. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that City Council has caused plans and an estimate of the cost and report for 
the above described public improvement to be prepared and made by the City Manager and the same is 
on file with the City Clerk and available for public examination. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the City Council will meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers, 
Owosso, Michigan at 7:30 o'clock p.m. on Monday, July 7, 2014 for the purpose of hearing any person to 
be affected by the proposed public improvement. 



Special Assessment Resolution No. 2 for Block 4 of original Plat, City of Owosso, Public Alley, 
from Williams Street to Oliver Street 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2014-06 Block 4 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, Public Alley 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has ordered the City Manager to prepare a report for public improvement, 
more particularly hereinafter described; and 
 

Block 4 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, Public Alley, from Williams Street to Oliver Street 
Alley Resurfacing 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager prepared said report and the same has been filed with the City Council as 
required by the Special Assessment Ordinance of the City of Owosso and the Council has reviewed said 
report. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The plans and estimate of cost and the report of the City Manager for said public improvement 

shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk and shall be available for public examination. 
 
2. The City Council hereby determines that the Public Improvement hereinafter set forth is 

necessary. 
 
3. The City Council hereby approves the estimate of cost of said public improvement to be 

$12,446.50 and determines that $4,978.60 thereof shall be paid by special assessment imposed 
on the lots and parcels of land more particularly hereinafter set forth, which lots and parcels of 
land are hereby designated to be all of the lots and parcels of land to be benefited by said 
improvements and determines that $7,467.90 of the cost thereof shall be paid by the City at large 
because of benefit to the City at large. 

 
4. The City Council hereby determines that the portion of the cost of said public improvement to be 

specially assessed shall be assessed in accordance with the benefits to be received. 
 
5. The City Council shall meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, July 7, 2014 

for the purpose of hearing all persons to be affected by the proposed public improvement. 
 
6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the time and place of the hearing to be 

published once in The Argus Press, the official newspaper of the City of Owosso, not less than 
seven (7) days prior to the date of said hearing and shall further cause notice of said hearing to 
be sent by first class mail to each owner of property subject to assessment, as indicated by the 
records in the City Assessor's Office as shown on the general tax roll of the City, at least (10) full 
days before the time of said hearing, said notice to be mailed to the addresses shown on said 
general tax rolls of the City. 

 
7. The notice of said hearing to be published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT HEARING 
CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 

 
TO THE OWNERS OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 
 

Block 4 of Original Plat, City of Owosso, Public Alley, from Williams Street to Oliver Street 
 



 TAKE NOTICE that the City Council intends to acquire and construct the following described 
public improvement: Alley Resurfacing. 
 
The City Council intends to defray apart or all of the cost of the above-described public improvement by 
special assessment against the above described property. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that City Council has caused plans and an estimate of the cost and report for 
the above described public improvement to be prepared and made by the City Manager and the same is 
on file with the City Clerk and available for public examination. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the City Council will meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers, 
Owosso, Michigan at 7:30 o'clock p.m. on Monday, July 7, 2014 for the purpose of hearing any person to 
be affected by the proposed public improvement. 



CLARK AVE.

FIRST ST.

W. OLIVER ST.

050-670-002-014-00 050-670-002-013-00

050-670-002-015-00

050-670-002-009-00
03-007-00

050-670-002-010-00

050-670-001-015-0

050-670-001-016-0

001-00

050-670-002-011-00

050-670-002-012-00

050-660-003-011-00

050-66

050-660-003-010-00

050-660-003-009-00

050-660-
050-670-002-016-00

050-660-003-008-00

050-660-004-013-00

050-670-002-019-00

050-670-002-018-00

050-670-002-017-00

0 50

Feet

AKKirkland
Line



N. WASHINGTON ST.N. BALL ST.

N. BALL ST.

N. WATER ST.
ADAMS ST.

ST.

W. OLIVER ST.

N. WATER ST.E DR.

W. EXCHANGE ST.

W. MASON ST.

W. WILLIAMS ST.

JR HIGH

SCHOOL

GROUNDS

0 100 200

Feet

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: June 12, 2014 
 
TO: City Council  
  
FROM: Susan Montenegro, Asst. City Manager/Community Development Director 
 
 
SUBJECT: 
  
The Planning Commission voted at its regular meeting on May 27, 2014 to rezone the following 
addresses along East Main to reduce spot zoning along this corridor. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Planning Commission recommends zoning changes to the ordinance that would rezone the 
following addresses to reduce spot zoning and encourage economic growth and development 
along East Main Street.  The addresses and recommended changes are: 
 
Parcel or Area Current Zoning Potential Zoning 
515 East Main R2 OS1 
615 East Main RM1 B1 
617 East Main OS1 B1 
827 East Main OS1 B4 
831 East Main OS1 B4 
835 East Main RM1 B4 
508 East Main RM1 OS1 
512 East Main RM1 OS1 
830 East Main RM1 B4 
832 East Main RM1 B4 
834 East Main RM1 B4 
910 East Main B1 B4 

 
Classifications 
R2 – Two-family residential RM1 – Multiple-family residential 
OS1 – Office service district B1 – Local business district 
B4 – General business district 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



BACKGROUND: 
  
Changes in zoning have been taking place over the years along East Main from Washington 
Street to Gould Street and have been moving from residential to business.  The Planning 
Commission noticed spot zoning along specific areas of East Main and believes changing the 
current zoning of the above listed properties will increase economic development along this 
corridor as outlined in the Master Plan.    
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
No fiscal impacts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: 
    
Susan Montenegro 

 
 



Approved 12-17-2012 1 12-03-2012 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 38 ZONING  
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  

TO REZONE VARIOUS PARCELS OF REAL PROPERTY ON EAST MAIN STREET 
AND AMEND THE ZONING MAP 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso adopted a Master Plan in 2012 which includes a future land use plan; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission desires to carefully implement prudent changes suggested by the 
Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the area of East Main Street from Hickory Street to Gould Street contains no less than 5 
separate zoning designations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommends the rezoning of select parcels in the area to reduce 
spot zoning and create an area with effective zoning for potential development and economic growth 
while land owners to maintain the current use of their property if they so desire; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission published and mailed notices for the request, held a public hearing 
on the request, and deliberated on the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed rezonings meet the intent and criteria for a 
zoning amendment as it relates to the master plan and the zoning ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City staff and Planning Commission recommend, without reservations or conditions, the 
rezoning of the following parcels: 
 

Parcel or Area Current Zoning Potential Zoning 

515 East Main R2 OS1 

615 East Main RM1 B1 

617 East Main OS1 B1 

827 East Main OS1 B4 

831 East Main OS1 B4 

835 East Main RM1 B4 

508 East Main RM1 OS1 

512 East Main RM1 OS1 

830 East Main RM1 B4 

832 East Main RM1 B4 

834 East Main RM1 B4 

910 East Main B1 B4 
 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning petition meets the intent and criteria for a zoning map 
amendment, specifically as it relates to the requirements of Section 38-555; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing by the City Council is required before any such ordinance amendment can be 
approved. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS:  



Approved 12-17-2012 2 12-03-2012 

      
SECTION 1.     OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT.  That Chapter 38, Zoning, Sec. 38-27, Zoning 
Districts and Map, reflect the following changes, to be noted on the official map and filed with the city 
clerk:  

          

Parcel or Area Parcel Number Current Zoning Potential Zoning 
515 East Main 050-666-000-048-00 R2 OS1 

615 East Main 050-112-000-013-00 RM1 B1 

617 East Main 050-112-000-013-00 OS1 B1 

827 East Main 050-112-000-030-00 OS1 B4 

831 East Main 050-112-000-032-00 OS1 B4 

835 East Main 050-112-000-033-00 RM1 B4 

508 East Main 050-180-001-005-00 RM1 OS1 

512 East Main 050-180-001-004-00 RM1 OS1 

830 East Main 050-580-000-072-00 RM1 B4 

832 East Main 050-580-000-073-00 RM1 B4 

834 East Main 050-580-000-074-00 RM1 B4 

910 East Main 050-580-000-075-00 B1 B4 
      
SECTION 2.  PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing is set for Monday, June 16, 2014 at 7:30 p.m. for the 
purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed ordinance amendment. 
 
SECTION 3.  NOTICE.  Council hereby directs staff to supply a public notice concerning the rezoning to a 
newspaper of general circulation within the city. 
 
SECTION 4.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk’s office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective twenty days after passage. 
 
 
 



JSU; J LU

E. WILLIAMS ST.

£
\~
w

i
z.

s
h-
a:

I
u

<m

I
a,

0
a

E. OLIVER ST.

=
_IZ

E MASON ST,

iT-

0 195 390 780 1,170 1,560

Feet

City of Owosso
East Main Proposed Rezoning

Legend

Zoning

<all other values>

Z_PRIMARY

City Parcels 2013 Edition



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: June 12, 2014 
 
TO: City Council  
  
FROM: Susan Montenegro, Asst. City Manager/Community Development Director 
 
 
SUBJECT: 
  
Deletion of Section 38-33 "Main Street office overlay district" from the chapter 38 of the zoning 
code. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
After its regular meeting in April, 2014, the planning commission hereby recommends to city 
council the deletion of Section 38-33 "Main Street office overlay district" from the zoning code.  
Planning commission makes this recommendation based that this specific section was written in 
1999 with corridor improvements specific to that time frame in mind.  Planning commission 
finds this section of the zoning code to be restrictive in nature and not in harmony with the city's 
Master Plan that was adopted in 2012. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
Deleting the Main Street office overlay district from the zoning code will allow for future 
development that is contiguous with the city's 2012 Master Plan.  Current zoning is too 
restrictive and imposes regulations on businesses within this district that are prohibitive to 
economic growth. 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: 
    
Susan Montenegro 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING FOR  
A PROPOSED ORDINANCE  

AUTHORIZING THE REPEAL OF SECTION 38-33  
OF THE OWOSSO CITY CODE REGARDING 

OFFICE OVERLAY DISTRICTS 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Planning Commission believes Section 
38-33 of the Zoning Code, commonly known as the Main Street office overlay district, to be prohibitive in 
nature to business development in the city of Owosso; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso seeks to continue economic growth and vitality through business 
development in the downtown and surrounding areas but is constrained by outdated and unnecessary 
restrictions put in place by the Main Street office overlay district zoning. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS that Chapter 38, 
Zoning, Article II, Zoning Districts and Map, Section 38-33, Main Street office overlay district, be repealed 
as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  REPEAL.  Section 38-33 of the Code of the City of Owosso be repealed. 
 
Sec. 38-33. Main Street office overlay district 

 
(a) Statement of purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to permit the creation of an office overlay 

zoning district along major transportation corridors of the city. The development standards set 
forth in this chapter are designed to: 

 
(1) Improve traffic safety and appearance; 

 
(2) Guide land use so it will be compatible with existing nearby land uses;  
 
(2) Recognize the value of property for non-residential uses along the corridor due to traffic 

volumes and accessibility; and 
 

(4) Permit the redevelopment of existing uses in accordance with the requirements of this 
chapter. 

 
(b) Applicability. 

 
(1) The development standards contained in this chapter shall apply to the land along both sides 

of M-21 from the M-21 right-of-way to the rear line of those lots fronting on M-21 for the area 
between Hickory Street and Gould Street and to the parcel at 106 N. Dewey Street. 
 

(2) The provisions of this chapter are intended to carry out the recommendations of the 1991 M-
21 corridor plan and the findings of the planning commission prior to the adoption of the 
ordinance amendment. The regulations set forth here are designed to be flexible in order to 
address the diverse nature of this area yet are based on a number of criteria to ensure 
appropriate, fair and consistent decision making. 

 
(3) An office overlay zoning district is applied when a development proposal is submitted for site 

plan approval to the planning commission, meets the development standards and other 
pertinent zoning standards, and is approved. 

 
(4) The overlay district shall not have the affect of rezoning any property described above in 

subsection (b)(1) in to another zoning district classification. No individual parcel will become 
nonconforming or any more nonconforming than it is under the current zoning classification. 



(c) Review procedures. Uses within this zone shall be subject to the review procedures required for 
the underlying district in which the use is located and as specified in this section. In addition the 
site plan review shall be conducted in a public hearing format as is provided for in section 38-552. 
 

(d) Permitted uses. The overlay zone shall not affect any existing conforming use as is determined 
by the permitted land use and related standards for the underlying zoning districts. The office 
overlay district shall permit the uses outlined in section 38-172, principle uses permitted, and 
section 38-173, principle uses permitted subject to special conditions, except that drive-in or 
drive-through facilities as a principle use or an accessory use shall not be permitted. 
 

(e) Development standards. Whenever the provisions of this section are enacted, a permitted use 
shall be in accordance with the site development standards of the overlay zone. The site 
development standards listed herein shall apply to all uses and property in this zone unless 
otherwise noted. 
 
(1) Required lot size: The minimum lot width shall be 114 feet except as is provided for in 

subsection (4)d.3. 
 

(2) Setbacks for buildings and parking: 
 

a. Front: There shall be a front yard setback of at least twenty-five (25) feet for buildings. 
This area shall not contain any parking area except for necessary access drives and 
vehicle maneuvering area and shall be landscaped according to the requirements of this 
section. Parking area shall not be located in front of the building(s) on the site. 

 
b. Rear and side: There shall be setbacks provided in accordance with the requirements of 

the zoning district in which the use is located. 
 

(3) Lighting standards: Lighting in this district used to illuminate any off-street parking area shall 
be arranged to reflect the light away from adjacent property and street. Specifically, lights 
with no cutoff-type luminaire shall be no higher than 10 feet and shall have a minimum 
illumination, measured at the lot line at ground level, of .20 candlepower. Lights with a cutoff-
type luminaire shall be no higher than twenty (20) feet with a maximum illumination, 
measured at the lot line ground level, of .30 candlepower. Lights with a luminaire of less than 
90° cutoff shall be no higher than twenty (20) feet, with a maximum illumination, measured at 
the lot line at ground level, of .50 candlepower. 

 
(4) Access standards: The planning commission shall review site plans according to the following 

standards relating to vehicle access and circulation. The purpose of specific standards is to 
increase traffic safety, lessen congestion, provide adequate access, promote community 
character, and ensure orderly development. 
 
a. The planning commission shall have the authority to limit the number of driveways for a 

site, and to require that parking lots on contiguous parcels be connected, driveways for 
contiguous parcels be shared, and opposite driveways be directly aligned. In determining 
whether the above access control measures are necessary, the following criteria shall be 
considered: 
 
1. The type and location of uses on the site. 
2. The location, size and design of existing and proposed parking areas. 
3. The existing and projected traffic volume on adjacent roadways. 
4. Compatibility between adjacent land uses. 
5. Land ownership and location of lot lines. 
6. The recommendations of the M-21 corridor study. 
7. Topography and sight distance on-site and along adjacent roadways. 
8. Distance from intersections. 
9. Location of driveways opposite the site. 
10. Width of roadway and number of lanes. 



b. A parcel shall not be denied reasonable access to M-21. 
 

c. A maximum of one (1) driveway shall be provided to an individual parcel or to a 
contiguous parcel under the same ownership from M-21 when the property in question 
has no other reasonable access to another abutting street or access road. 

 
d.Driveway spacing: 
 

1. Driveways shall be spaced at least one hundred (100) feet apart with measurements 
taken from the centerline of each driveway. The planning commission shall have the 
authority to waive, or modify the following spacing requirements when strict 
adherence to them would result in unreasonable access to the site. This minimum 
distance may also be decreased in order to provide for a shared driveway 
arrangement or to provide for safer traffic or pedestrian circulation. In modifying the 
driveway spacing requirements the criteria of subsection (e)(4)a. shall be used. 

2. Corner clearance. All direct-access driveways shall be constructed such that the 
point of tangency of the curb return radius closest to a signalized or stop-sign-
controlled intersection be at least forty (40) feet from the perpendicular curb face of 
the intersecting street. Using a 15-foot driveway radius, the edge of the driveway 
throat shall be fifty (50) feet from the curb face of the perpendicular intersecting 
street. The driveway radius shall not compound with the intersection corner radius. 

3. Bonus for combining access points. When two adjacent property owners agree to 
combine access points, the site development will be granted an incentive bonus. The 
road frontage normally required will be reduced to eighty-eight (88) feet for both 
landowners. 

 
d. Rear access: When a lot abuts an alley, access to the alley shall be prohibited unless the 

lot is located adjacent to a side street or the alley no longer serves residential properties. 
 

(5) To maintain the original character of this residential corridor and to tie the mixed-use district 
together, each development shall incorporate deciduous hardwood plantings in an area from 
five (5) to ten (10) feet from the sidewalk in the front yard area. The existing trees and new 
trees in this area shall maintain a spacing standard of one (1) tree for every thirty (30) feet of 
frontage. During site plan review the planning commission may revise the spacing to meet 
sign visibility needs and driveway site clearances. Tree species shall conform to the city 
arborist's recommended list of street frontage trees as may be amended from time to time 
and shall conform to the applicable standards of section 38-384. 
 

(6) No land assembly for the purposes of establishing an overlay district shall result in isolating 
one interior zoning lot that is less than eighty-eight (88) feet in width. If the development of 
the overlay district results in a lot less than the required width of one hundred fourteen (114) 
feet but not less than eighty-eight (88) feet, the planning commission shall authorize an office 
use if all other standards of this section and chapter are met. 

 
SECTION 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective twenty days after passage. 
 
SECTION 3.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk’s office 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 4.  PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing is set for Monday, July 7, 2014 at 7:30 p.m. for the 
purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed ordinance repeal. 
 
  
 
 



w
K
§
u
r
z

E OLIVER ST.

E. WILLIAMS ST.

TZ

£
f~
co

<̂
0
z

E. MASON ST.

31

co
>-
UJ
s
UJ
d
'Z.

CO

Q'
LU
m

(3

co
I

0
D

E. OLIVER ST.

^̂
s
s
Q

E MASON ST.

E. EXCHANGE ST.

106 N Dewey

Main Street Office Overlay District

E COMSTOCK ST.

g
D
0
0

<
0

JEROMEAVE.

City of Owosso
Main Street Office Overlay District

June 12, 2104

0 170 340 680 1,020 1,360

Feet



 

 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   For June 16, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
TO: Owosso City Council   
 
FROM:  Gary Burk, Utilities Director 
  
RE:    Water & Sewer Rate Schedule for FY 2014-2015    
 
 
Separately enclosed is the proposed water and sewer rate schedule for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014.   The 
proposed rate changes are in line with the projections approved by Council in June of 2012 and June of 2013. The 
information provided to Council last June is separately re-submitted, along with the June 18, 2012 Council Resolution, 
in the packet for ready reference. 
 
There are two differences to the projection previously approved by Council.  First, the Water Main Replacement 
Charge would remain the same rather than increase as previously projected from $12 to $14.00 per quarter for a 
residential customer.  Due to staffing changes and uncertainty of the street program we have yet to ramp up our water 
main replacements and the $12.00 rate is in line with the current water capital outlay budget.  The sewer demand 
charge, currently $25 per quarter for residential users, is proposed to increase to $26 per quarter, rather than $25.50.  
The change from the original projection is needed to pay the City’s share of a new (in FY 2014/15) component of the 
Wastewater Plant Replacement Charge for non-flow based replacements such as re-roofing, heating and ventilating 
equipment. 
 
These changes will result in an overall 4.4% increase in a typical residential water bill rather than the 5.4% 
projected increase previously approved by Council.  These increases are in line with the CPI (consumer price 
index) for utilities, which is on the order of 5% per year. 
  
The changes to the Water & Sewer Rate Schedule are briefly described below.  The changes would not apply to the 
June 30, 2014 billing but would be in effect for the September 30, 2014 quarterly billing.  Staff recommends Council 
adoption of the proposed Water & Sewer Rate Schedule for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014.   
 

The in-town Water Demand Charge would increase from $30.00 to $31.00 per quarter for a typical 
residential user, and a proportionate increase for larger metered services.  The out-of-town rate would 
increase from $60.00 to $62.00 per quarter (with 25% of the revenue going to the Township for water main 
replacement in the Township).  The increase is necessary to cover increasing costs for items such as debt 
service, water main and storage tank repairs, and water meter replacement.  This increase does not affect 
the wholesale rate to Corunna. 
 
The in-town Water Usage Charge would increase from $1.60 to $1.70 per meter unit (100 cubic feet or 
about 750 gallons).  The out-of-town rate would increase from $3.20 to $3.40 per unit (again with 25% of the 
revenue going to the Township).  The wholesale rate to the City of Corunna would increase by the same 

 
 
 



percentage.  This increase is necessary to cover increasing rates and costs for power and chemicals and 
lime residual management and is needed to offset declining metered water sales.  
 
The Sewer Demand Charge would increase from $25.00 to $26.00 per quarter for a typical residential 
customer, and a proportionate increase for larger services.  The increase is necessary to cover increasing 
costs for maintenance and repair of the sewer collection system and the new component of the Plant 
Replacement Charge as noted above.   
 
The Sewer Usage Charge would increase from $2.10 to $2.20 per unit of metered water.  This applies only 
to City customers as the Townships and Corunna separately bill their own retail customers.  Costs for the 
Mid-County Wastewater Treatment Plant are shared on a wholesale basis between the 4 mid-County local 
units of government.  The increase in the Sewer Usage Charge is necessary to cover the City share (about 
70%) of the cost of the plant operation and in part is needed to offset declining usage revenues due to 
reduction in metered water use. 



RESOLUTION NO.   
 

WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 
FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 

 
"Pursuant to Sections 34-248. Water Rates, and 34-249. Sewer Rates, of Article V, of Chapter 
34, of the Owosso City Code, the City Council does hereby resolve that the following rate 
schedule for water and sewer service shall be in effect for the City fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2014 and continuing thereafter until modified or replaced by further Council action.  Bills issued 
with a nominal bill date of June 30, 2014 covering the quarter from April to June 2014 shall be 
billed under the previous rate schedule.  All previous resolutions or parts thereof, insofar as the 
same may be in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed following the effective date of this 
schedule.” 
   

CITY OF OWOSSO 
WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 

FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 
 

I. QUARTERLY WATER AND SEWER RATES 
 
In-town quarterly water service charges consist of: a demand charge based on water 
meter size (see table below), a capital charge dedicated for water main replacement, and 
a metered usage charge. One meter unit is equal to 100 cubic feet of water or about 750 
gallons. Rates for retail out-of-town water service are double the in-town rate, except that 
the capital charge does not apply to out-of-town customers where the respective 
Township separately finances water main replacement. Twenty five percent of the out-of-
town revenue is collected for and transferred to the respective Township for use in 
replacing and improving their water distribution system. 
 
Quarterly sewer charges consist of a demand charge based on the water meter size (see 
table below) and a sewer usage charge based on metered water consumption. The City 
has no retail out-of-town sewer service.  

 
Bills are issued on a quarterly basis and, if not paid by the due date as shown on the 
billing, a late payment charge of ten percent (10%) of the current amount due may be 
added for failure to make prompt payment. 

 
QUARTERLY WATER SERVICE CHARGE: 
 
In-town:  In-town Water Usage Charge of $1.70 per meter unit plus In-town Water  

   Demand Charge plus Capital Charge from Table below. 
 
Out-of-town: Out-of-town Water Usage Charge of $3.40 per meter unit plus Out-of-

town Water Demand Charge from Table below. 
 

QUARTERLY SEWER SERVICE CHARGE: 
 

  Sewer Usage Charge of $2.10 per unit plus Sewer Demand Charge  
   from Table below. 
  

  For residential customers without metered water service, the quarterly  
  sewer charge shall be $76.40 per residential unit.  

 
 
 
 



WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 
FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 

(page 2 of 3) 
 

QUARTERLY DEMAND CHARGE TABLES 
   

A. Potable Water & Sewer Service 
 

 Water Meter  Water        Water   Sewer  Combined   Water Only 
       Size          Demand      CAPITAL       Demand   In-Town (Out-of-town) 

        
      5/8"             $31.00      $ 12.00 $ 26.00           $69.00           $62.00 
      3/4"   46.50         18.00    39.00    103.50             93.00 
      1"    77.50         30.00    65.00          172.50            155.00  
      1.5”             155.00         60.00  130.00               345.00          301.00 
      2"             248.00         96.00  208.00              552.00                     496.00  
      3"             465.00       180.00   390.00             1,035.00           930.00 
      4"             775.00         300.00        650.00             1,725.00       1,550.00 

        6"          1,550.00         600.00       1,300.00             3,450.00       3,100.00 
 

For a residential user with a second 5/8” meter on a single service line for water only 
irrigation service, the user shall be charged a single water demand and capital charge 
equivalent to a 3/4” metered service on a year round basis. 
 
The demand charge for multiple residential units served by a single water meter shall be 
based on actual meter size provided the meter meets the minimum size requirement per 
the following table: 
 

Number of Apartments  Minimum Meter Size 
 

 1 - 3       5/8" 
 4 - 7       3/4" 
 8 - 11         1" 

     12 - 15     1&1/2" 
     16 - 24             2"  
 24 - 48         3” 
 Over 48         4” 
 

B. Fire Protection Service 
 

Sprinkler Service   Quarterly Water Charge         
             
    In-Town  Out-of-Town 
    Riser  Size   DEMAND CAPITAL     DEMAND 
       4 inch   $   46.50  $   18.00    $   93.00 
       6 inch  $   77.50 $   30.00    $ 155.00 
       8 inch  $ 155.00 $   60.00    $ 310.00 
      10 inch  $ 248.00 $   96.00    $ 496.00 
 

 
II. HYDRANT RENTAL CHARGES  
 

Hydrants located outside the City of Owosso and private hydrants maintained by the City 
of Owosso shall be subject to an annual hydrant rental charge of $150.  

 
 



 
WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 

FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 
(page 3 of 3) 

 
 
 
III. BULK WATER CHARGES 
 

For users with an active city water service connection, bulk water delivered by the city 
from hydrants or other approved outlets for such purposes as pool filling, shall be 
charged at the standard metered usage rate given in Section I. above along with actual 
labor and equipment costs with a minimum charge of $40.00. 

 
Other bulk water sales, such as filling tank trucks, shall be charged at the rate of $9.00 
per thousand gallons with a $45.00 minimum charge, which includes up to 5,000 gallons, 
if during the normal workday at an established city delivery point. After hours bulk water 
sales and/or sales at other than established city delivery points, shall be charged at the 
rate of $9.00 per thousand gallons plus actual labor and equipment costs. 
 
For customers who do not prepay a $10 service charge shall apply for invoicing. 
 
(Note: These charges do not apply to water supplied for fire fighting). 

 
IV.  INCREMENTAL WATER AND SEWER USAGE CHARGES FOR BILLING 
 ADJUSTMENTS RELATED TO PLUMBING LEAKS  
 

The incremental water and sewer usage charges shall be 50% of the normal usage 
charge. These incremental usage rates are for the purpose of making adjustments to 
significantly high bills attributable to plumbing leaks and may be applied in accordance 
with Guidelines separately approved by the Owosso City Council.  

 
 
V. EXTRA STRENGTH WASTEWATER SURCHARGES 

 
Extra strength wastewater surcharges shall apply to those users of the City wastewater 
treatment system approved for the discharge of extra strength wastewater in accordance 
with Section 34-170. of the Owosso City Code. The surcharge rate shall be applied to 
loadings in excess of the base or normal strength loading.  
 

EXTRA STRENGTH WASTEWATER SURCHARGE SCHEDULE 
 

PARAMETER  BASE   SURCHARGE 
 

BOD-5   220 MG/L  $0.11/pound in excess of base 
TSS   300 MG/L  $0.17/pound in excess of base 
TP    10 MG/L  $1.50/pound in excess of base 
NH3-N    20 MG/L  $0.80/pound in excess of base 

 
(Note: BOD-5 = Biochemical Oxygen Demand; TSS = Total Suspended Solids; TP = 
Total Phosphorous; NH3-N = Ammonia Nitrogen; MG/L = Milligrams per Liter)." 

 



Owosso Water & Sewer
Rate History & Projections 
July 2014
(Changing rates are in bold)

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Adopted Proposed Projected
Sept 2005 Apr 2010 FY2010-11 FY2011-12 FY2012-13 FY2013-14 FY2014-15 FY2015-16

to Mar 2010 to Jun 2011
"Typical" family of four City Residential Customer

Water Demand Charge per quarter 22.50$          25.00$           30.00$         30.00$          30.00$        30.00$       31.00$        32.00$      
Proposed Water Main Replacement Charge -$              -$               -$             -$             10.00$        12.00$       12.00$        12.00$      

Water Usage Rate per 100cf 1.20$            1.30$             1.40$           1.40$            1.50$          1.60$         1.70$          1.80$        
Water Usage Charge for 24 units per quarter 28.80$          31.20$           33.60$         33.60$          36.00$        38.40$       40.80$        43.20$      

Quarterly Water Charge 51.30$          56.20$           63.60$         63.60$          76.00$        80.40$       83.80$        87.20$      
% increase 0.0% 9.6% 13.2% 0.0% 19.5% 5.8% 4.2% 4.1%

Sewer Demand Charge per quarter 22.50$          22.50$           25.00$         25.00$          25.00$        25.00$       26.00$        27.00$      
Sewer Usage Rate per 100cf 1.70$            1.70$             1.80$           1.80$            1.90$          2.00$         2.10$          2.20$        

Sewer Usage Charge for 24 units per quarter 40.80$          40.80$           43.20$         43.20$          45.60$        48.00$       50.40$        52.80$      

Quarterly Sewer Charge 63.30$          63.30$           68.20$         68.20$          70.60$        73.00$       76.40$        79.80$      
% increase 0.0% 0.0% 7.7% 0.0% 3.5% 3.4% 4.7% 4.5%

Total In City Quarterly Water & Sewer 114.60$        119.50$         131.80$       131.80$        146.60$      153.40$      160.20$      167.00$    
% increase 0.0% 4.3% 10.3% 0.0% 11.2% 4.6% 4.4% 4.2%

Additional sewer charge for footing drain discharge to be separately proposed and would apply to a limited number of customers

Out-of-Town Residential Customer (Water only)

Water Demand Charge per quarter 45.00$          50.00$           60.00$         60.00$          60.00$        60.00$       62.00$        64.00$      
Proposed Water Main Replacement Charge -$              -$               -$             -$             -$            -$           -$            -$          

Water Usage Rate per 100cf 2.40$            2.60$             2.80$           2.80$            3.00$          3.20$         3.40$          3.60$        
Water Usage Charge for 24 units per quarter 57.60$          62.40$           67.20$         67.20$          72.00$        76.80$       81.60$        86.40$      

Quarterly Water Charge 102.60$        112.40$         127.20$       127.20$        132.00$      136.80$      143.60$      150.40$    

% increase 0.0% 9.6% 13.2% 0.0% 3.8% 3.6% 5.0% 4.7%



 
 
 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   For June 3, 2013 City Council Meeting 
 
TO: Owosso City Council   
 
FROM:  Gary Burk, Utilities Director 
  
RE:    Water & Sewer Rate Schedule for FY 2013-2014    
 
 
Attached is the proposed water and sewer rate schedule for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013. The 
proposed rate changes are in line with the projections approved by Council last June and included as 
part of the Water and Sewer Fund adopted budget for the upcoming fiscal year. The  information 
provided to Council last June is separately re-submitted, along with the June 18, 2012 Council 
Resolution, in the packet for ready reference. 
 
The only difference to the projection provided last June is that the Water Demand Charge would remain 
the same rather than increase as previously projected from $30 to $30.50 per quarter for a residential 
customer. The projected increase was originally proposed to cover increasing bond debt payments. 
However, the refinancing of the 2002 Water Plant Improvement bonds provided adequate savings in 
interest expense to negate the demand charge increase for FY 2013/14. 
  
The changes to the Water & Sewer Rate Schedule are briefly described below. The changes would not 
apply to the June 30, 2013 billing but would be in effect for the September 30, 2013 quarterly billing. 
Staff recommends Council adoption of the proposed Water & Sewer Rate Schedule for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2013.   
 

The in-town Water Usage Charge would increase from $1.50 to $1.60 per meter unit (100 
cubic feet or about 750 gallons). The out-of-town rate would increase from $3.00 to $3.20 per 
unit. The wholesale rate to the City of Corunna would increase by the same percentage. This 
increase is necessary to cover increasing rates and costs for power and chemicals and lime 
residual management.  
 

 
 
 

AKKirkland
Text Box
This information is reprinted from the meeting of June 2, 2013.  5 pgs.



The Sewer Usage Charge would increase from $1.90 to $2.00 per unit of metered water. This 
applies only to City customers as the Townships and Corunna separately bill their own retail 
customers. Costs for the Mid-County Wastewater Treatment Plant are shared on a wholesale 
basis between the 4 mid-County local units of government. The increase in the Sewer Usage 
Charge is necessary to cover the City share (about 70%) of the cost of the plant operation. 
 
The Water Capital Charge would increase from $10 to $12 per quarter for a typical in-City 
residential customer. For users with larger services the charge would be higher in the same 
proportion as the current Water Demand Charge. The charge also applies to in-town fire 
sprinkler services. Revenue from this charge is dedicated to street water main replacement in 
the City of Owosso. The Charge does not apply to out-of-town retail customers or the City of 
Corunna as Corunna and the respective Townships are responsible for replacing the distribution 
water mains in their jurisdictions.  
 
 
 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION NO.  _____ 
 

WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 
FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2013 

 
"Pursuant to Sections 34-248. Water Rates, and 34-249. Sewer Rates, of Article V, of Chapter 
34, of the Owosso City Code, the City Council does hereby resolve that the following rate 
schedule for water and sewer service shall be in effect for the City fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2013 and continuing thereafter until modified or replaced by further Council action. Bills issued 
with a nominal bill date of June 30, 2013 covering the quarter from April to June 2012 shall be 
billed under the previous rate schedule. All previous resolutions or parts thereof, insofar as the 
same may be in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed following the effective date of this 
schedule.” 
   

CITY OF OWOSSO 
WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 

FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2013 
 

I. QUARTERLY WATER AND SEWER RATES 
 
In-town quarterly water service charges consist of: a demand charge based on water 
meter size (see table below), a capital charge dedicated for water main replacement, and 
a metered usage charge. One meter unit is equal to 100 cubic feet of water or about 750 
gallons. Rates for retail out-of-town water service are double the in-town rate, except that 
the capital charge does not apply to out-of-town customers where the respective 
Township separately finances water main replacement. Twenty five percent of the out-of-
town revenue is collected for and transferred to the respective Township for use in 
replacing and improving their water distribution system. 
 
Quarterly sewer charges consist of a demand charge based on the water meter size (see 
table below) and a sewer usage charge based on metered water consumption. The City 
has no retail out-of-town sewer service.  

 
Bills are issued on a quarterly basis and, if not paid by the due date as shown on the 
billing, a late payment charge of ten percent (10%) of the current amount due may be 
added for failure to make prompt payment. 

 
QUARTERLY WATER SERVICE CHARGE: 
 
In-town:  In-town Water Usage Charge of $1.60 per meter unit plus In-town Water  

   Demand Charge plus Capital Charge from Table below. 
 
Out-of-town: Out-of-town Water Usage Charge of $3.20 per meter unit plus Out-of-

town Water Demand Charge from Table below. 
 

QUARTERLY SEWER SERVICE CHARGE: 
 

  Sewer Usage Charge of $2.00 per unit plus Sewer Demand Charge  
   from Table below. 
  

  For residential customers without metered water service, the quarterly  
  sewer charge shall be $73.00 per residential unit.  

 
 
 
 



WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 
FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2013 

(page 2 of 3) 
 

QUARTERLY DEMAND CHARGE TABLES 
   

A. Potable Water & Sewer Service 
 

 Water Meter  Water        Water   Sewer  Combined   Water Only 
       Size          Demand      CAPITAL       Demand   In-Town (Out-of-town) 

        
      5/8"             $30.00      $ 12.00 $ 25.00           $67.00           $60.00 
      3/4"   45.00         18.00    37.50    100.50             90.00 
      1"    75.00         30.00    62.50          167.50            150.00  
      1.5”             150.00         60.00  125.00               335.00          300.00 
      2"             240.00         96.00  200.00              536.00                     480.00  
      3"             450.00       180.00   375.00             1,005.00           900.00 
      4"             750.00         300.00        625.00             1,675.00       1,500.00 

        6"          1,500.00         600.00       1,250.00             3,350.00       3,000.00 
 

For a residential user with a second 5/8” meter on a single service line for water only 
irrigation service, the user shall be charged a single water demand and capital charge 
equivalent to a 3/4” metered service on a year round basis. 
 
The demand charge for multiple residential units served by a single water meter shall be 
based on actual meter size provided the meter meets the minimum size requirement per 
the following table: 
 

Number of Apartments  Minimum Meter Size 
 

 1 - 3       5/8" 
 4 - 7       3/4" 
 8 - 11         1" 

     12 - 15     1&1/2" 
     16 - 24             2"  
 24 - 48         3” 
 Over 48         4” 
 

B. Fire Protection Service 
 

Sprinkler Service   Quarterly Water Charge         
             
    In-Town  Out-of-Town 
    Riser  Size   DEMAND CAPITAL     DEMAND 
       4 inch   $   45.00  $   18.00    $   90.00 
       6 inch  $   75.00 $   30.00    $ 150.00 
       8 inch  $ 150.00 $   60.00    $ 300.00 
      10 inch  $ 240.00 $   96.00    $ 480.00 
 

 
II. HYDRANT RENTAL CHARGES  
 

Hydrants located outside the City of Owosso and private hydrants maintained by the City 
of Owosso shall be subject to an annual hydrant rental charge of $144.  

 
 



 
WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 

FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2013 
(page 3 of 3) 

 
 
 
III. BULK WATER CHARGES 
 

For users with an active city water service connection, bulk water delivered by the city 
from hydrants or other approved outlets for such purposes as pool filling, shall be 
charged at the standard metered usage rate given in Section I. above along with actual 
labor and equipment costs with a minimum charge of $40.00. 

 
Other bulk water sales, such as filling tank trucks, shall be charged at the rate of $8.00 
per thousand gallons with a $40.00 minimum charge, which includes up to 5,000 gallons, 
if during the normal workday at an established city delivery point. After hours bulk water 
sales and/or sales at other than established city delivery points, shall be charged at the 
rate of $8.00 per thousand gallons plus actual labor and equipment costs. 
 
For customers who do not prepay a $10 service charge shall apply for invoicing. 
 
(Note: These charges do not apply to water supplied for fire fighting). 

 
IV.  INCREMENTAL WATER AND SEWER USAGE CHARGES FOR BILLING 
 ADJUSTMENTS RELATED TO PLUMBING LEAKS  
 

The incremental water and sewer usage charges shall be 50% of the normal usage 
charge. These incremental usage rates are for the purpose of making adjustments to 
significantly high bills attributable to plumbing leaks and may be applied in accordance 
with Guidelines separately approved by the Owosso City Council.  

 
 
V. EXTRA STRENGTH WASTEWATER SURCHARGES 

 
Extra strength wastewater surcharges shall apply to those users of the City wastewater 
treatment system approved for the discharge of extra strength wastewater in accordance 
with Section 34-170. of the Owosso City Code. The surcharge rate shall be applied to 
loadings in excess of the base or normal strength loading.  
 

EXTRA STRENGTH WASTEWATER SURCHARGE SCHEDULE 
 

PARAMETER  BASE   SURCHARGE 
 

BOD-5   220 MG/L  $0.11/pound in excess of base 
TSS   300 MG/L  $0.17/pound in excess of base 
TP    10 MG/L  $1.50/pound in excess of base 
NH3-N    20 MG/L  $0.80/pound in excess of base 

 
(Note: BOD-5 = Biochemical Oxygen Demand; TSS = Total Suspended Solids; TP = 
Total Phosphorous; NH3-N = Ammonia Nitrogen; MG/L = Milligrams per Liter)." 

 



1 
 

 
 
WATER/SEWER RATE PROPOSAL  (Continued from the meeting of June 4, 2012.) 
 
Utilities Director Gary Burk explained that despite Council’s request for a proposal tied to a multiplier he 
did not feel comfortable developing such a proposal because certain expenses are covered by certain 
charges and they do not necessarily move in conjunction with one another.  He said he did recognize that 
Council was attempting to estimate future costs for planning purposes.  Due to the fact that several 
variables could not be quantified at this time he was reluctant to ask Council to adopt rates for future 
fiscal years.  He suggested they adopt the rates proposed at the June 4th meeting for the 2012-2013 fiscal 
year and approve projections for the following three fiscal years to facilitate planning and budgeting.  
Barring any material changes Council would see the projected rates come before them again with each 
subsequent budget. 
 
There was discussion regarding footing drain separations and the Sanitary Sewer Overflow Control 
Project.  Utilities Director Burk expressed his concern with a lack of man-power when it comes to such 
projects. 
 
Motion by Councilperson Cook to approve the following resolution adopting water and sewer rates 
beginning July 1, 2012 and further approve projections to 2016 for budgeting purposes. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 76-2012 
 

WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 
FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2012 

 

"Pursuant to Sections 34-248. Water Rates, and 34-249. Sewer Rates, of Article V, of Chapter 
34, of the Owosso City Code, the City Council does hereby resolve that the following rate 
schedule for water and sewer service shall be in effect for the City fiscal year beginning July 
1, 2012 and continuing thereafter until modified or replaced by further Council action. Bills 
issued with a nominal bill date of June 30, 2012 covering the quarter from April to June 
2012 shall be billed under the previous rate schedule. All previous resolutions or parts 
thereof, insofar as the same may be in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed following the 
effective date of this schedule.” 
 
I.          QUARTERLY WATER AND SEWER RATES 
 

In-town quarterly water service charges consist of: a demand charge based on water meter 
size (see table below), a capital charge dedicated for water main replacement, and a metered 
usage charge. One meter unit is equal to 100 cubic feet of water or about 750 gallons. Rates 
for retail out-of-town water service are double the in-town rate, except that the  capital  charge  
does  not  apply  to  out-of-town  customers  where  the  respective Township separately 
finances water main replacement. Twenty five percent of the out-of- town revenue is collected 
for and transferred to the respective Township for use in replacing and improving their 
water distribution system. 

 
Quarterly sewer charges consist of a demand charge based on the water meter size (see table 
below) and a sewer usage charge based on metered water consumption. The City has no 
retail out-of-town sewer service. 

 
Bills are issued on a quarterly basis and, if not paid by the due date as shown on the billing, 
a late payment charge of ten percent (10%) of the current amount due may be added for 
failure to make prompt payment. 

  

Excerpt from the minutes 
of  

June 18, 2012 



2 
 

QUARTERLY W ATER SERVICE CHARGE: 
 

In-town:            In-town Water Usage Charge of $1.50 per meter unit plus In-town Water 
Demand Charge plus Capital Charge from Table below. 

Out-of-town:     Out-of-town Water Usage Charge of $3.00 per meter  unit plus Out-of- town 
Water Demand Charge from Table below. 

 
QUARTERLY SEW ER SERVICE CHARGE: 
 

Sewer Usage Charge of $1.90 per unit plus Sewer Demand Charge 
from Table below. 

 
For residential customers without metered water service, the quarterly 
sewer charge shall be $70.60 per residential unit. 

 
QUARTERLY DEMAND CHARGE TABLES  
 

A.         Potable Water & Sewer Service 
 

Water 
 

Water Water Sewer Combined Water Only 
Size Demand CAPITAL Demand In-Town (Out-of-town) 

5/8" $30.00 $ 10.00 $ 25.00 $65.00 $60.00 
3/4" 45.00 15.00 37.50 82.50 90.00 
1" 75.00 25.00 62.50 137.50 150.00 

1.5” 150.00 50.00 125.00 275.00 300.00 
2" 240.00 80.00 200.00 440.00 480.00 
3" 450.00 150.00 375.00 825.00 900.00 
4" 750.00 250.00 625.00 1,375.00 1,500.00 
6" 1,500.00 500.00 1,250.00 2,750.00 3,000.00 

 

For a residential user with a second 5/8” meter on a single service line for water only 
irrigation service, the user shall be charged a single water demand and capital charge 
equivalent to a 3/4” metered service on a year round basis. 

 
The demand charge for multiple residential units served by a single water meter shall be 
based on actual meter size provided the meter meets the minimum size requirement per the 
following table: 

 
Number of Apartments               Minimum Meter Size 

 

1 - 3                                              5/8" 
4 - 7                                              3/4" 
8 - 11                                              1" 
12 - 15                                         1&1/2" 
16 - 24                                             2" 
24 - 48                                             3” Over 
48                                               4” 

 
B.         Fire Protection Service 

 
Sprinkler Service                        Quarterly Water Charge 

 
              In-Town              Out-of-Town 

Riser  Size DEMAND          CAPITAL DEMAND 
4 inch $  45.00 $  15.00 $  90.00 
6 inch $  75.00 $  25.00 $ 150.00 
8 inch $ 150.00 $  50.00 $ 300.00 
10 inch $ 240.00 $  80.00 $ 480.00 



3 
 

II.         HYDRANT RENTAL CHARGES 
 

Hydrants located outside the City of Owosso and private hydrants maintained by the City of 
Owosso shall be subject to an annual hydrant rental charge of $144. 

 

III.        BULK WATER CHARGES 
 

For users with an active city water service connection, bulk water delivered by the city from 
hydrants or other approved outlets for such purposes as pool filling, shall be charged at the 
standard metered usage rate given in Section I. above along with actual labor and equipment 
costs with a minimum charge of $40.00, which includes up to 5,000 gallons. 

 

Other bulk water sales, such as filling tank trucks, shall be charged at the rate of $8.00 per 
thousand gallons with a $40.00 minimum charge, which includes up to 5,000 gallons, if during 
the normal workday at an established city delivery point. After hours bulk water sales and/or 
sales at other than established city delivery points, shall be charged at the rate of $8.00 per 
thousand gallons plus actual labor and equipment costs. 

 
Customers who prepay shall be granted a 10% discount. 

 
(Note: These charges do not apply to water supplied for fire fighting). 

 
IV.         INCREMENTAL WATER AND SEWER USAGE CHARGES FOR BILLING 

ADJUSTMENTS RELATED TO PLUMBING LEAKS 
 

The incremental water and sewer usage charges shall be 50% of the normal usage 
charge. These incremental usage rates are for the purpose of making adjustments to 
significantly high bills attributable to plumbing leaks and may be applied in accordance with 
Guidelines separately approved by the Owosso City Council. 

 
V.         EXTRA STRENGTH WASTEWATER SURCHARGES 

 
Extra strength wastewater surcharges shall apply to those users of the City wastewater 
treatment system approved for the discharge of extra strength wastewater in accordance with 
Section 34-170. of the Owosso City Code. The surcharge rate shall be applied to loadings in 
excess of the base or normal strength loading. 

 
EXTRA STRENGTH WASTEW ATER SURCHARGE SCHEDULE 

 

PARAMETER BASE SURCHARGE 
 

BOD-5 
TSS 
TP 
NH3-N 

 

220 MG/L 
300 MG/L 
10 MG/L 
20 MG/L 

 

$0.11/pound in excess of base 
$0.17/pound in excess of base 
$1.50/pound in excess of base 
$0.80/pound in excess of base 

 

(Note: BOD-5 = Biochemical Oxygen Demand; TSS = Total Suspended Solids; TP = Total 
Phosphorous; NH3-N = Ammonia Nitrogen; MG/L = Milligrams per Liter)." 

 
  



4 
 

Owosso Water & Sewer 
Rate History & Projections  

June 2012 

    (Changing rates are in bold) Projected Projected Projected 

 

FY2013-
14 

FY2014-
15 

FY2015-
16 

    "Typical" family of four City Residential Customer 
       

Water Demand Charge per quarter  $   30.50   $   31.00   $   32.00  
Proposed Water Main Replacement Charge  $   12.00   $   14.00   $   16.00  

Water Usage Rate per 100cf  $    1.60   $    1.70   $    1.80  
Water Usage Charge for 24 units per quarter  $   38.40   $   40.80   $   43.20  

    Quarterly Water Charge  $   80.90   $   85.80   $   91.20  
% increase 6.4% 6.1% 6.3% 

    Sewer Demand Charge per quarter  $   25.00   $   25.50   $   26.00  
Sewer Usage Rate per 100cf  $    2.00   $    2.10   $    2.20  

Sewer Usage Charge for 24 units per quarter  $   48.00   $   50.40   $   52.80  

    Quarterly Sewer Charge  $   73.00   $   75.90   $   78.80  
% increase 3.4% 4.0% 3.8% 

    Total In City Quarterly Water & Sewer  $ 153.90   $ 161.70   $ 170.00  
% increase 5.0% 5.1% 5.1% 

    
    Additional sewer charge for footing drain discharge to be separately proposed and 

would apply to a limited number of customers 

    Out-of-Town Residential Customer (Water only) 
   

    Water Demand Charge per quarter  $   61.00   $   62.00   $   64.00  
Proposed Water Main Replacement Charge  $        -     $        -     $        -    

Water Usage Rate per 100cf  $    3.20   $    3.40   $    3.60  
Water Usage Charge for 24 units per quarter  $   76.80   $   81.60   $   86.40  

    Quarterly Water Charge  $ 137.80   $ 143.60   $ 150.40  

    % increase 4.4% 4.2% 4.7% 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Popovitch. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Erfourth, Fox, Cook, Mayor Pro-Tem Popovitch, Councilperson Eveleth, 

and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: June 16, 2014  
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark A. Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order No. 1 – Engineering Services, DIG Part 2 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
I find the cost reasonable and recommend approval of Change Order No. 1 to the contract with Fishbeck, 
Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. for engineering services for the Downtown Infrastructure Grant Project, Part 2, in 
the amount of $3,900.00. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
On April 21, 2014, City Council awarded a contract to Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. in the amount of 
$59,900.00 for professional engineering services in connection with the riverfront improvements adjacent to City 
Hall.  City staff has since requested additional services of the consultant.  Specifically, the city asked the 
consultant to provide geotechnical investigation for new retaining wall construction along the James Miner 
Riverwalk.  Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. is willing to perform these additional design services at a 
cost of $3,900.00. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:   
 
Funds for this change order are available in account number 494-901-965.756-Contractual Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by:   Jane E. Hunt, Engineering Secretary 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER #1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH 
FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC.  

FOR  
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR DOWNTOWN INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT PROJECT 

PART 2 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with Fishbeck, 
Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. on April 21, 2014 for Engineering Services for the Downtown Infrastructure 
Grant Project Part 2; and 
 
WHEREAS the city requests additional services of the consultant to analyze existing site conditions of the 
project site and finds it necessary to perform additional work beyond the original contractual scope of 
services; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to amend the contract with Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. for a 
cost to the City of Owosso of $3,900.00. 

 
SECOND: Said change shall be documented by the Accounts Payable Department in the form of a 

Change Order. 
 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the Contractual Services Fund, Account No. 494-

901-965.756.   
 
 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: June 16, 2014 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Service Department 
 
SUBJECT: General Engineering Services Agreements 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend renewal and approval of three agreements for General Engineering Service Agreements for 
a period ending June 30, 2015.  Specifically, it is recommended that City Council approve renewals with: 
 

1. Spicer Group, Inc. (St Johns, MI) 
2. Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. (Lansing, MI) 
3. Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. (Flint, MI) 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On March 17, 2014, City Council approved Agreements for Professional Engineering Services with Spicer 
Group, Inc., Fishbeck, Thompson Carr & Huber, Inc., and Fleis & Vandenbrink, Inc.  These agreements are 
to be renewed annually through June 30, 2017.  These services are necessary to support engineering staff 
in carrying out the duties and responsibilities of the Engineering Division whenever workload demands the 
addition of the consultant’s staff and expertise.  All three firms have satisfactorily performed services for the 
city in the past. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
City staff will request individual quotes from the three firms whenever there is a need for a specific service. 
These quotes will be evaluated and administered in accordance with the city of Owosso’s Purchasing Policy 
to determine which firm will be awarded the contract.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by:  Jane E. Hunt, Engineering Secretary 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF AGREEMENTS 
FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH 

SPICER GROUP, INC. 
FISHBECK, THOMPSON, CARR & HUBER, INC. 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Michigan, has determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 
interest to contract for professional engineering services for various public improvement projects of the 
city; and 
 
WHEREAS, in March 2014 Council approved a series of three-year contracts with engineering firms 
Spicer Group, Inc., Fishbeck Thompson Carr & Huber Inc., and Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. 
which require renewal on an annual basis; and 
 
WHEREAS, Spicer Group, Inc., Fishbeck Thompson Carr & Huber Inc., and Fleis & Vandenbrink 
Engineering Inc., have provided the City with satisfactory services to date and renewal of their respective 
agreements is recommended. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city of Owosso, county of Shiawassee, state of Michigan: 
 

FIRST: that the city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to renew the contracts with the firms of Spicer Group, Inc., Fishbeck 
Thompson Carr & Huber Inc., and Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering Inc., to provide 
professional engineering services for future engineering projects. 

 
SECOND: that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed and authorized to sign 

the document attached as; Exhibit C-SG, Renewal of Agreement for Professional 
Engineering Services with Spicer Group, Inc.. 

 
THIRD that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed and authorized to sign 

the document attached as; Exhibit C-FTCH, Renewal of Agreement for Professional 
Engineering Services with Fishbeck Thompson Carr & Huber Inc.. 

 
FOURTH that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed and authorized to sign 

the document attached as; Exhibit C-FV, Renewal of Agreement for Professional 
Engineering Services with Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc.. 

 
FIFTH that the city manager of the city of Owosso is hereby instructed to receive cost proposals 

from each of these three firms for future projects and make recommendation to City 
Council for acceptance and award in accordance with the city of Owosso Purchasing 
Policy for the period renewed through June 30, 2015. 

 



EXHIBIT C-SG 
 

RENEWAL OF  
AGREEMENT FOR  

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH  
SPICER GROUP, INC. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals 
the day and date noted, renewing the contract “Agreement for Professional Engineering 
Services with Spicer Group, Inc.” for the term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 
 
 
For the engineer:     For the owner: 
      Spicer Group, Inc.          City of Owosso, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ By: _____________________________ 
        Benjamin R. Frederick 
        Mayor 
 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ By: _____________________________ 
        Amy K. Kirkland 
        City Clerk 
 
 
Executed: __________________, 2014  Executed: __________________, 2014 
    
 



EXHIBIT C-FTCH 
 

RENEWAL OF  
AGREEMENT FOR  

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH  
FISHBECK THOMPSON CARR & HUBER INC. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and date 
noted, renewing the contract “Agreement for Professional Engineering Services with Fishbeck Thompson 
Carr & Huber Inc.” for the term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 
 
 
For the engineer:     For the owner: 
      Fishbeck Thompson Carr & Huber Inc.              City of Owosso, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 
              Benjamin R. Frederick 
              Mayor 
 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 
              Amy K. Kirkland 
             City Clerk 
 
 
Executed: __________________, 2014  Executed: __________________, 2014 
    
 



EXHIBIT C-FV 
 

RENEWAL OF  
AGREEMENT FOR  

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH  
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and date 
noted, renewing the contract “Agreement for Professional Engineering Services with Fleis & Vandenbrink 
Engineering, Inc.” for the term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 
 
 
For the engineer:     For the owner: 
      Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc.              City of Owosso, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 
              Benjamin R. Frederick 
              Mayor 
 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 
              Amy K. Kirkland 
             City Clerk 
 
 
Executed: __________________, 2014  Executed: __________________, 2014 
    
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: June 11, 2014 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Professional Engineering Services for North Street Culvert replacement Project: Study and 

Report Phase 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend City Council accept the proposal from Spicer Group, Inc. and award a contract to them in the 
amount of $11,000.00. This will come out of the general fund bridge maintenance 203-473-818000. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On March 17, 2014, City Council awarded a contract to Spicer Group, Inc. to provide professional 
engineering services on an as-needed basis.  Their services are necessary to fulfill engineering 
requirements for the North Street Culvert Replacement Project.  City staff received proposals from its list of 
firms to provide engineering services and finds the proposal from Spicer Group, Inc. to be the most 
qualified.  The scope of work includes a study and report phase; all together with related work. Spicer 
Group, Inc. will perform a land survey and hydrologic/hydraulic analysis of the culvert and Corlett Creek, 
then furnish a report of its findings with recommendation.  The study and report phase will determine the 
best plan of action toward the eventual replacement of the culvert.  City staff will furnish and advise City 
Council at a future date as to the findings of the report.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The study and report phase is the first part of a series of actions that are necessary toward eventually 
replacing the culvert.  Additional engineering costs will be determined at a future date after the study and 
report phase is completed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by:   Jane E. Hunt, Engineering Secretary 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT 
FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH 

SPICER GROUP, INC. 
FOR THE NORTH STREET CULVERT REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, is considering the replacement of the 
North Street culvert over Corlett Creek; and  
 
WHEREAS, this project requires the services of a professional engineering firm; and 
 
WHEREAS, Spicer Group, Inc. has been prequalified to perform such work and offers to perform work as 
described in the city’s Request For Proposal for the North Street Culvert Replacement Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Spicer Group, Inc. offers to complete the Study and Report Phase of said project in return for 
compensation in an amount not to exceed $11,000.00; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ the firm of Spicer Group, Inc. to provide professional 
engineering services for the North Street Culvert Replacement Project: Study and Report 
Phase. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Addendum to an Agreement for Professional Engineering Services 
between the City of Owosso, Michigan and Spicer Group, Inc.  

 
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amount of 

$11,000.00 to Spicer Group, Inc. upon successful completion of stated work. 
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the proceeds of the general fund bridge 

maintenance 203-473-818000. 
 
  
 
 
 





 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: June 11, 2014 
 
TO: Owosso City Council  
  
FROM: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Purchase Authorization for Laserfiche Avante Web Distribution Portal software 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends the purchase of Laserfiche Avante Web Distribution Portal software from General 
Code in the amount of $10,055.00.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
The Clerk’s Office has started the process of migrating documents to electronic storage from a primarily 
paper storage system.  We have now built up a small database of past documents in addition to the 
current files we are adding to the system every day.  At this point it would be prudent to provide read/print 
access to allow City staff to view the catalogued documents to assist them in day to day operations.  This 
could effectively be accomplished through the purchase of Laserfiche’s Avante Web Distribution Portal.  
The Portal would allow 5 employees to view and print documents in the system simultaneously.  Also, as 
an added bonus, should we purchase more full user licenses in the future (negating the need for 
employees to use the Portal to access documents) we may be able to convert the Portal from an internal 
access point to an external, public access point, allowing citizens to view documents via the web. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
This purchase is a budgeted item and will be charged to account numbers 101-215-978000 and 101-215-
833000. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF  
LASERFICHE AVANTE WEB DISTRIBUTION PORTAL SOFTWARE  

FROM GENERAL CODE 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan finds it necessary and advisable to 
purchase Laserfiche’s Avante Web Distribution Portal software to provide employee access to the City’s 
new electronic records database; and 
 
WHEREAS, General Code is the regional provider of said software; and 
 
WHEREAS, city ordinance section 2-345(1) provides for an exception to competitive bidding when the 
service, product or material contracted for is not competitive in nature; and 
 
WHEREAS, this purchase is a budgeted item in the Clerk’s Office budget, account numbers 101-215-
978000 and 101-215-833000.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to purchase Laserfiche Avante Web Distribution Portal software 
from General Code at a cost not to exceed $10,055.00. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached,  
 

THIRD: The above expenses are hereby authorized to be paid from the General Fund, 
account numbers 101-215-978000 and 101-215-833000 upon delivery and 
departmental verification of contract compliance. 

 
 



   

 
 

General Code 
www.generalcode.com 
Fax to 585/328-8189 

781 Elmgrove Rd.  Rochester, NY 14624 
(855) GEN-CODE    (585) 328-1810 

FAX (585) 328-8189 

 
 

CHANGE ORDER #OW3163_06052014 – ADDITIONAL PRODUCT OR SERVICES  
 

This change order is subject to General Code's Content Management Solutions Terms & Conditions which are available at 
www.generalcode.com/TCdocs and are incorporated herein by reference, and client authorizes General Code to proceed 
with the project.  
 
Client Name: City of Owosso Contact Person:   Amy Kirkland 
Address: 301 W. Main Street Account Executive: Michael Leidlein 
 Owosso, MI 48867 Date:   06-05-2014   

 
Model # Quantity Unit Price Total

Avante Web Distribution Portal MPD 1 $7,995.00 $7,995.00
$7,995.00

LSAP Avante Web Distribution Portal MPDB 1 $1,760.00 $1,760.00
$1,760.00

Remote Services - to include: RS03 1 $300.00 $300.00
     Software Installation
     Setup of Security Profile with Customer

$300.00
$10,055.00

Services Subtotal
Grand Total

Line Item Description
Add-Ons/Plug-Ins

Add-Ons/Plug-Ins Subtotal
Support

Support Subtotal
Services

 
 
LSAP fees shown herein are for a full year LSAP.  As applicable, LSAP will be prorated to align with the existing LSAP anniversary date for 
the main system.  Therefore, the LSAP amount on your invoice may be less than the amount shown here.  
  
Remote Services include but are not necessarily limited to the following services: software order processing; project management; software 
implementation such as modification of server to reflect new license levels; installation or modification of server; client or scanning 
software; installation and/or configuration of add-on products, such as WebLink, Quick Fields or Workflow and configuration of hardware, 
such as scanners.  
 
LSAP:  2nd year forward for this component is estimated to be:  $1,760.00  
            This estimate is subject to change based upon the then-current support prices for that year. 
 
Timeline:  This service will be provided within 90 days from receipt of the signed Change Order. 
 
Payment Terms:  50% on receipt of signed change order; 50% on delivery of software and/or services. 
 
Price Validity:  Price is valid for 30 days from 06-05-2014. 
 

 
(Client please fill out)  Invoice for this Change Order to be sent to: 

Department:           Contact Name:        
 



CHANGE ORDER FORM 

 
 

General Code 
www.generalcode.com 

 
This Change Order is subject to General Code’s Content Management Solutions Terms & Conditions and to the License 
Agreements for the software referred to above, all of which are available at www.generalcode.com/TCdocs and are 
incorporated herein by reference, and client authorizes General Code to proceed with the project. 
 
The prices and specifications in this Change Order are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. All work is to be performed 
under the same terms and conditions as specified in the original contract unless otherwise specified. 
 
CITY OF OWOSSO, SHIAWASSEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 
Signature    Date    
 
Name    Title    



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
DATE:   For June 16, 2014 City Council Meeting (Consent Agenda) 
 
TO: Owosso City Council   
 
FROM:  Gary Burk, Utilities Director 
  
RE:    Water/Wastewater Treatment; Annual Supply Contracts for Bulk Chemicals 

1. Ferric Chloride - Bid Award to PVS Technologies, Inc. 
2. Sodium Hypochlorite – Bid Award to Jones Chemical Inc. 
3. Quicklime – Bid award to Graymont Western Lime Corporation  

 
 
1. Ferric Chloride   
We recommend bid award (bid tab attached) to the low bidder, PVS Technologies, Inc., at the unit price 
of $0.53 per pound of iron.  Based on projected usage of 72,000 pounds per year, the annual contract is 
estimated at $38,160.  This is a decrease of 9.8% from the current price ($0.588 per pound from Kemira). 
Ferric chloride is required for phosphorus and solids removal in our wastewater treatment process.  

 
2.  Bulk chlorine solution (sodium hypochlorite) 
We recommend bid award (bid tab attached) to the low bidder, Jones Chemical Inc., at the unit price of 
$0.69 per gallon of sodium hypochlorite (chlorine solution) plus $85 per truck load for split delivery.  Based 
on projected usage, the annual contract is estimated at $38,280. This is the same price and supplier as the 
current year.  This chemical is used for disinfection for both the water and wastewater treatment processes. 
 Bulk deliveries are split between the two facilities with approximately 2/3 to the wastewater plant and 1/3 to 
the water plant.   

 
3.  Quicklime  
We recommend bid award (bid tab attached) to the low bidder, Graymont Western Lime Corporation, at the 
unit price of $144.00 per ton, for quicklime used for water treatment.  Based on projected usage of 800 tons, 
the annual contract is estimated at $115,200 for the year.  This is a 2.8 % increase over the current price of 
$140.00 (Graymont Western Lime Corp.).  
 
Enc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION  
OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR 

FERRIC CHLORIDE FOR WATER TREATMENT FOR FY 2014/15  
WITH PVS TECHNOLOGIES INC.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires ferric chloride (iron) in bulk 
deliveries for use in treating municipal wastewater; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for ferric chloride; a bid was received from PVS Technologies 
Inc.; and it is hereby determined that PVS Technologies Inc. is qualified to provide such product and that it 
has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to purchase ferric chloride from PVS Technologies Inc. in the 
amount of $0.53 per pound of iron for the city fiscal year 2014/2015 with an estimated 
total amount for the year of $38,160.00. 

 
SECOND: The purchase agreement between the City and PVS Technologies Inc. shall be in the 

form of a City Purchase Order and bid documents. 
 

THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the Wastewater Fund following delivery. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION  
OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR 

BULK CHLORINE SOLUTION FOR WATER TREATMENT  
FOR FY 2014/15  

WITH JONES CHEMICAL, INC.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires sodium hypochlorite (chlorine 
solution) in bulk deliveries for use in treating municipal drinking water and wastewater; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for bulk chlorine solution (sodium hypochlorite); a bid was 
received from Jones Chemical Inc.; and it is hereby determined that Jones Chemical Inc. is qualified to 
provide such product and that it has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to purchase bulk chlorine solution from Jones Chemical Inc. in the 
amount of $0.69 per gallon of solution plus $85.00 per truckload for split delivery for 
the city fiscal year 2014/2015 with an estimated total amount for the year of 
$38,280.00. 

 
SECOND: The purchase agreement between the City and Jones Chemical Inc. shall be in the 

form of a City Purchase Order and bid documents. 
 

THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the Water and Wastewater Funds following 
delivery. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION  
OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR 

QUICKLIME FOR WATER TREATMENT  
FOR FY 2014/15  

WITH GRAYMONT WESTERN LIME CORPORATION  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires quicklime in bulk deliveries for use 
in treating municipal drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for quicklime; a bid was received from Western Lime 
Corporation; and it is hereby determined that Graymont Western Lime Corporation is qualified to provide 
such product and that it has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to purchase quicklime from Graymont Western Lime Corporation in 
the amount of $144.00 per ton for the city fiscal year 2014/2015 with an estimated 
total amount for the year of $115,200.00. 

 
SECOND: The purchase agreement between the City and Western Lime Corporation shall be in 

the form of a City Purchase Order and bid documents. 
 

THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the Water Fund following delivery. 











 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: June 16, 2014 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Mark A. Sedlak, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Sale of 2006 Elgin Street Sweeper 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Council approve the sale of a used 2006 Elgin Street Sweeper to Bell Equipment Company, 78 Northpointe 
Drive, Lake Orion, MI 48359 (248) 370-0000 as follows: 
 
 One (1) 2006 Elgin Street Sweeper  $17,500.00 
  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On an ongoing basis the City disposes of City property that meets or exceeds the criteria for replacement or  is 
no longer useful to the City, including police patrol cars, DPW equipment, etc. via an online auction process. 
The sale is handled on the MITN Surplus Auction System.  The city is responsible for payment to MITN of 5% of 
the bid price for this service. 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 
FOR THE SALE OF A USED 2006 ELGIN STREET SWEEPER 

TO BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has established a purchasing cycle to 
maintain a healthy work vehicle fleet; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of this purchasing cycle older vehicles are retired and sold to the highest bidder; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso uses the MITN online auction service to sell this equipment at a 
processing fee of 5% of the bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, a bid solicitation for said used equipment was advertised and a responsive bid was received 
from Bell Equipment Company. in the amount of $17,500.00 for one (1) 2006 Elgin Street Sweeper. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to sell the named equipment to the high bidder as detailed above.  

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to execute appropriate documents 

to complete the sale of this item. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

WARRANT 483 
 

June 10, 2014 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

    
    
Logicalis, Inc Network engineering support -

May 2014 
 

    General  $ 9,123.00 
 
 

Mike & Son Asphalt Inc Release of retainer from Jackson 
Dr sidewalk project 

Streets $ 1,000.00 

    
Brown & Stewart PC Professional services – May 13, 

2014 – June 9, 2014 
 General  $ 8,876.95 

    
 
 
 

   

         Total           $18,999.95 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867‐2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

 
 

 
DATE: June 12, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Set special meeting time for June 30th meeting 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend setting an early meeting time of 7:00 p.m. for the June 30th work session. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Council has set an ambitious agenda for the June 30th work session including:   
 

1. Street Millage Proposal Discussion 
2. Video Equipment Budget Discussion 
3. Osburn Lakes Development Discussion 

 
All three of these topics have the potential to take up significant time and in the interest of getting 
everyone home at a decent hour I am suggesting Council set an early start time.  As an alternative, the 
agenda may be adjusted as well. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
None, whether the meeting lasts until 8:00 p.m. or midnight, Council pay is the same! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 

 
 











AKKirkland
Rectangle

AKKirkland
Rectangle

AKKirkland
Rectangle

AKKirkland
Stamp

AKKirkland
Stamp

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Line

AKKirkland
Stamp

AKKirkland
Stamp

AKKirkland
Stamp

AKKirkland
Stamp

AKKirkland
Rectangle

AKKirkland
Stamp

AKKirkland
Stamp









































































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 301 W.  MA IN    OWOSSO ,  M I CHI GAN  48867- 2958    ( 989 )  725 -0599   FAX  ( 989)  723-8854 

 

 

DATE: June 12, 2014 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Donald Crawford, city manager 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution authorizing 21-day posting of purchase agreement for the sale of city-

owned property at 1120-70 Juniper Street 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The city council should study this proposal and decide whether it 
is advisable to sell any land outside Phase I at this time, and if the decision is yes, whether to sell 
parcel, whether the city should pursue the plan for Phase II at this time, and a number of related 
issues.   
 
BACKGROUND: In 2002 the city of Owosso acquired land and prepared a plan for a 
development known as Osburn Lakes.  Phase I was platted and became a platted subdivision with 
a master deed establishing a condominium project.  Nothing has happened with the proposed 
Phase II.   
 
The city has received a proposal from Leonard and Laura Birchmeier to purchase a parcel of land 
in Phase II consisting of three proposed lots designed as n, o and p which would measure 239 feet 
in length (north to south) and 125 feet in depth (west to east).  The parcel would front on a small 
portion of the completed Juniper Street and Juniper Street extended.  Water and sewer service is 
available to the parcel. 
 
The purchase offer is $20,000.  The following covenants would be placed on the parcel: 
   
 1. Minimum size of dwelling unit shall be 1,300 square feet of living space which 

excludes basements, garages and porches. 
 

2. The dwelling shall have an attached two car to four car garage.   
 

3. Accessory structures may not exceed 300 square feet and shall not exceed 15 feet in 
height. 

 
4. The property shall not be subdivided. 

 
5. The property owner shall be responsible for extending water and sewer service to the 

dwelling from existing city owned lines.  Septic tanks are not permitted. 

 
 
 



 
6. All provisions of the city of Owosso ordinances including, zoning and building codes 

ordinance shall apply. 
 
The city would not extend Juniper Street or any utility lines and not be required to do so in the 
future at the city’s expense.   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: The fiscal impacts are rather vague.  The analysis made of the property 
according to the land sale policy places a value of $_____ .  This value assumes that streets and 
utilities are provided.  Based upon an engineer’s estimate the cost of extending Juniper Street 
would be $200.00 a foot at 2014 prices.  The construction of a dwelling would generate property 
taxes. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

AUTHORIZING 21-DAY POSTING OF PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE SALE OF 
CITY-OWNED PROPERTY AT 1120-1170 JUNIPER STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the city owns an unsubdivided property in the city of Owosso, Caledonia Township, 
Shiawassee County, Michigan which the city acquired for the development of a subdivision; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to develop the property into single family homes and is willing to sell parcels 
to purchasers who will build a dwelling upon the parcel; and 
 
WHEREAS, Leonard and Laura Birchmeier approached the city offering to purchase a parcel generally as 
follows subject to a survey: 
 
SEC 18, T7N, R3E, CITY OF OWOSSO, W 1/2 OF NE 1/4 AND W 1/2 OF E 1/2 OF NE 1/4 DESCRIBED 
AS BEGINNING AT A POINT THAT IS AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 69 OF THE OSBURN 
LAKES RESIDENTIAL SITE CONDOMINIUM; THENCE SOUTH 239 FEET; THENCE EAST 125 FEET 
TO THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 63; THENCE NORTHERLY 239 FEET; THENCE 
WESTERLY 125 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING .7078 ACRES, MORE OR 
LESS. 
 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the value of the land in question has been determined according to the city’s property sale 
policy as modified; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city charter requires a 21-day posting period prior to the sale of any city-owned property 
to allow for public comment and potential offers. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Michigan that: 
 

1. The purchase agreement for the property described above be posted for a 21-day period to allow 
for citizen comment.  
 

2. The agreement be returned to council at the meeting of July 21, 2014 for potential final 
disposition.   



 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE 
 
 
 THE PURCHASERS, Leonard Birchmeier and Laura Birchmeier, hereby offer and agree 
to purchase, and the SELLER, the City of Owosso, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, hereby 
agrees to sell, land situated in the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan upon the 
following terms and conditions. 
 
 WHEREAS Purchasers offered and wishes to purchase certain property from Seller and 
Seller wishes to sell the same: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1.  PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: A parcel of land, together with all buildings, 
structures, rights, easements and appurtenances pertaining thereto and all improvements, trees, 
bushes, landscaping and foliage thereon, (the “Property”). The legal description of the parcel is as 
follows: 
 

See attached legal description for property yet to be surveyed. 
 
 
 2.  PURCHASE PRICE: Purchasers shall pay therefore the sum of Twenty Thousand 
and No/100 ($20,000.00) Dollars (the “Purchase Price”). 
 
 3.  DEPOSIT: Purchasers herewith deposits with Seller the sum of Two Thousand and 
No/ 100 ($2,000.00) Dollars, as a deposit which shall be applied to the purchase price at closing.   
 
 4.  METHOD OF CLOSING: The sale shall be consummated by the delivery of a 
Warranty Deed conveying fee simple marketable title with the balance of the purchase price to be 
paid in cash or by certified check at the time of closing. Consummation of this Agreement is 
subject to the approval of the Owosso City Council. 
 
 5.  TAXES: All taxes and assessments due as of the closing date,  including but not 
limited to any and all special assessments, even if payable in installments after closing, which 
have become a lien upon the land, whether recorded or unrecorded, at the date of this agreement 
shall be paid by the Seller.  Purchaser shall pay all taxes and special assessments assessed after 
the closing date. 
 
 6.  CLOSING FEES: Any closing fees charged for services rendered by an escrow 
company shall be divided equally between Purchasers and Seller except where the payment of 
same shall be prohibited by law. 
7.  CONDITIONS PRECEDENT. Purchasers’ and Seller’s obligations under this Agreement are 
conditioned upon the satisfaction of each of the following conditions: 
 
 (i) Purchasers, in Purchasers’ sole discretion, obtaining a Survey, surveyor’s report and 

surveyor’s certificate. 
 
 (ii) Purchasers are buying the property on an “as is” basis.  



 
 (iii) Approval of the purchase by the Owosso City Council. 
 
The above duties and terms shall survive the closing. 
 
 (iv) If Purchasers and Seller fail to satisfy or be satisfied with any one or more of the 

contingencies set forth above, or if Purchasers determine, at Purchasers’ sole and 
absolute discretion, or for any reason whatsoever, to terminate this Agreement, 
within the inspection and approval period as defined in paragraph 9, below, then 
Purchasers may, on or before expiration of the inspection and approval period, as 
defined in paragraph 9, below, terminate this Agreement by giving written notice 
thereof to Seller, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be null and void and of no 
further force or effect, and Purchasers and Seller shall have no further rights, 
obligations, or liabilities under this Agreement.  

 
 8.  INSPECTION: Purchasers and their employees, agents, and representatives shall at 
all times before Closing, have the privilege, opportunity, and right to enter upon the Property to 
inspect, examine, and perform surveys, soil tests, borings, structural analysis and tests, and any 
other tests needed to determine structural surface, subsurface, and topographic conditions of the 
Property, or for any other reasons deemed necessary by Purchasers for the satisfaction of the 
conditions set forth in paragraph 7, above.  Provided, however, that Purchasers, their employees, 
agents and representatives shall indemnify and defend Seller from any claims arising from their 
activities on the property relating to this right of inspection and shall return the property to its 
original condition. 
 
 9.  INSPECTION AND APPROVAL PERIOD: From the Effective Date, Purchasers 
shall have until the closing date (the “Inspection and Approval Period”) to inspect the Property in 
the manner set forth in paragraph 8 above; and to obtain such other studies, tests, determinations, 
assessments and approvals, including but not limited to structural testing and inspection, site plan 
approval, easements, licenses, variances, curb cuts, and as otherwise set forth in paragraph 7, 
above, and any other determinations, assessments and approvals that are necessary to permit 
Purchasers’ intended use of the Property, as deemed in Purchasers’ sole discretion. Any delay by 
Seller in performing its obligations pursuant to this Agreement shall result in an extension of the 
Inspection and Approval Period equal to the length of the delay. 
 
 10.  CLOSING: The consummation of the purchase and sale of the Property pursuant to 
this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall be held no later than __90_____ days from the last date of 
the signatures below. Closing shall take place at the title company, or such other location, as the 
Seller and Purchasers may mutually agree in writing.  Purchasers shall take possession at 
closing. 
 
 11.  TITLE INSURANCE: As evidence of title, Seller shall obtain, at Seller’s sole cost 
and expense, a commitment for title insurance issued by a title company for a policy of title 
insurance from an underwriter acceptable to Purchasers, insuring title with standard exceptions. 
 
 
12. COVENANTS: The following covenants shall be inserted in the Warranty Deed and 

placed upon the property which shall bind purchaser and subsequent owners of the 
property: 

 



1. Minimum size of dwelling unit shall be 1,300 square feet of living space which 
excludes basements, garages and porches. 

  2. The dwelling shall have an attached two car to four car garage.   
 
  3. Accessory structures may not exceed 300 square feet and shall not exceed 15 feet 

in height. 
 
  4. The property shall not be subdivided. 
 
  5. The property owner shall be responsible at property owner’s expense for 

extending water and sewer service to the dwelling from existing city owned lines.  
Septic tanks are not permitted. 

 
  6. All provisions of the city of Owosso ordinances including, zoning and building 

code ordinances shall apply. 
 
 
 13.  OBJECTIONS TO CONDITION OF TITLE: If objection to the title is made by the 
Purchasers, then Seller may terminate this Agreement, or at its discretion, cure the objectionable 
defect.  If this Agreement is terminated by Seller due to an objection to title, the deposit shall be 
returned to Purchasers. 
 
 14.  SELLER’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS. Seller 
represents, warrants and covenants to Purchasers that: 
 
 (a) Seller (i) has complete and full authority to execute this Agreement, (ii) will execute 

and deliver any documents, instruments, and agreements including, but not limited to, 
affidavits and certificates necessary to consummate the transaction contemplated 
herein, and (iii) will take all additional action that is reasonably necessary or 
appropriate to effect and facilitate the consummation of the sale and purchase 
transaction contemplated herein, as may be required by the Title Company. 

 
 (b) Seller will not further sell, encumber, convey, or assign, or contract to sell, encumber, 

convey, assign, pledge, or lease all or any part of the Property or restrict the use of all 
or any part of the Property or take or cause to be taken any action in conflict with this 
Agreement at any time between the Seller’s acceptance hereof and (i) Closing or (ii) 
the earlier termination of this Agreement pursuant to its terms. 

 
 (c) Neither the entering into of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transaction 

contemplated hereby will constitute or result in a violation or breach by Seller of any 
judgment, order, writ, injunction, or decree issued against or imposed upon it or 
contract to which it is a party or will result in a violation by Seller of any applicable 
law, order, rule, or regulation of any governmental authority. There is no action, suit, 
proceeding or investigation pending which would become a cloud on the title to the 
Property or any portion thereof or which questions the validity or enforceability of 
the transaction contemplated by this Agreement or any action taken pursuant hereto 
in any court or before or by any federal, district, county, or municipal department, 
commission, board, bureau, agency or other governmental instrumentality, nor does 
Seller have any knowledge that any such action, suit, proceeding or investigation is 
threatened. 

 



 (d)  Seller is not a “foreign person” as that term is defined in the Internal Revenue Code, 
Section 1445(F)(3) and the sale of the Property is not subject to any withholding 
requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Code, including, without limitation, 
Section 1445(F)(3). 

 
 (e) Seller is not a party to or bound by any contract or agreement of any kind or 

whatsoever, written or verbal, which might affect the Property. 
 
15. MISCELLANEOUS: 
 
 (a) Governing Law: This purchase agreement shall be governed by, construed and 

enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
 (b) Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire, integrated agreement 

between the parties, and supersedes all prior written and unwritten negotiations, 
agreements, proposals and understandings. This Agreement shall not be orally 
amended, modified, superseded, or canceled, it being specifically understood that any 
of the terms, covenants, representations and conditions contained herein may be 
amended only by written instrument executed by all parties. 

 
 (c) Binding Effect: The covenants and conditions herein shall bind and inure to the 

benefits of the executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the respective 
parties. If the parties herein be more than one or if they be of the feminine sex, or a 
corporation or other business entity, such words and pronouns and other relative 
words shall be read as if written in the plural, feminine, and neuter, respectively. 

 
 (d) Assignment: This Agreement may be assigned or transferred only by written consent 

of the non-assigning party. 
 
 (e) Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts each of which may 

be deemed an original, and all such counterparts together shall be deemed one and 
the same agreement. 

 
 (f) Survival: All warranties, covenants, duties and representations made herein shall 

survive closing. 
 
 16.  BROKERS: If either party has used a broker, it shall be that party’s responsibility to 
compensate its broker.  
 
 17.  EFFECTIVE DATE: If this Agreement is not signed simultaneously by Seller and 
Purchasers it shall be considered to be an offer made by the party first executing it to the other 
party. In this event, that offer shall expire at midnight on the tenth (10th) calendar day following 
signature by the offering party. Effective date shall mean the date upon which this Agreement is 
accepted by the parties to whom the offer is made. Acceptance shall be deemed to have been 
made on the date the fully executed Agreement is received by the party first executing the 
Agreement. 
 
 18.  NOTICES: All notices, requests, demands or other communications hereunder shall 
be in writing and deemed given (a) when delivered personally or (b) on the day said 
communication is deposited in the U.S. mail, by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, or (c) on the next business day after notice is sent by facsimile or (d) 
on the day said communication is deposited with a nationally recognized overnight courier 
service, addressed and/or sent by facsimile, as the case may be, as follows: 



 
 
If to Seller:    If to Purchasers: 
City of Owosso   
301 West Main Street                           
Owosso, Michigan 48867  
 
ATTENTION:  ATTENTION:  
 
 
  



The parties executed this Agreement for Purchase of Real Estate as of the date set forth below. 
 
DATED: _________________, 2014  DATED: ____________________, 2014 
 
SELLER: City of Owosso  PURCHASERS:  
 
 
BY: _____________________________ __________________________________ 
        Benjamin Frederick   
ITS: Mayor    
     _________________________________ 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
PREPARED BY: 
William C. Brown    P 33871 
Owosso City Attorney 
114 East Main Street, Suite 218 
Owosso, Michigan 48867 
(989) 729-0071 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 202 S WATER ST · OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 · (989)725-0580 · FAX (989)725-0528 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  June 10, 2014  
 
TO:  Owosso City Council 
   
FROM: Kevin Lenkart 
 
RE:  May 2014 report 
  
 
 
 
Attached are the statistics for the police department for May 2014.  This report includes 
activity for the month of May and year-to-date statistics.  Also attached is a list of Field 
Contacts, which are incidents that the police are dispatched to that require no further 
follow up than the officers initial response. 
 
Also included are the Burning Violation reports for May 2014. 

  

 
 

 
 

    
  

 
 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
Director of Public Safety 

Kevin Lenkart 

 



Case Assignment/Clearance Report For May,  2014
May 2014

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENTUser: SSPENCER, 5039 06/10/2014  12:01

AssignedOffenses
Percent
ClearedCleared Assigned Cleared

Current Month Year-To-Date

PART I OFFENSES
ROBBERY 0 0 0 0 0 %

AGGRAVATED ASSAULT 4 2 8 6 75 %

BURGLARY 3 4 19 22 115 %

LARCENY 20 15 68 49 72 %

MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 2 2 4 5 125 %

SIMPLE ASSAULT 10 9 33 27 81 %

ARSON 0 1 1 1 100 %

FORGERY & UTTERING 0 0 2 1 50 %

COUNTERFEITING 0 0 0 0 0 %

FRAUD 7 4 38 13 34 %

EMBEZZLEMENT 0 0 1 1 100 %

WEAPON CRIMES- CARRY, POSS, 0 0 0 0 0 %

PROSTITUTION 0 0 0 0 0 %

SEX OFFENSES 1/ UNDER AGE - 2 0 5 1 20 %

NARCOTICS VOLIATIONS 5 4 27 18 66 %

GAMBLING VIOLATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 %

VANDALISM-DAMAGE-DESTRUCTIO 0 0 0 0 0 %

HOMICIDE 1 0 0 0 0 0 %

HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 %

RAPE / NON - FAMILY 1 0 2 0 0 %

SEX OFFENSES 2 5 5 11 9 81 %

PARENTAL KIDDNAP 0 0 0 0 0 %

KIDDNAPPING 0 0 0 0 0 %

BURGLARY RESIDENTIAL 2 0 7 0 0 %

BURGLARY COMMERCIAL 0 0 1 1 100 %

RESISTING/OBSTRUCTING 0 0 2 1 50 %

61 46 229 155 67PART I OFFENSES %

PART II OFFENSES
PAROLE/PROBATION VIOLATION 3 3 8 9 112 %

NATURAL DEATH 0 0 10 3 30 %

RETAIL FRAUD 1 1 3 5 166 %

RUNAWAY 7 3 27 16 59 %

VIOLATION PPO/ COURT ORDER 0 0 0 1 0 %

Page 1r_case8



AssignedOffenses
Percent
ClearedCleared Assigned Cleared

Current Month Year-To-Date

FAMILY NONSUPPORT 0 0 0 0 0 %

SUSPICOUS DEATH 0 0 0 2 0 %

TRAFFIC OFFENSES OTHER 8 2 34 8 23 %

CRIMINAL CASE OTHER 0 0 0 0 0 %

WARRANT ARREST 16 13 72 52 72 %

SUSPICOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 3 1 15 8 53 %

WARRANT ADVISED 0 0 0 0 0 %

MENTAL ORDER-ECO / TDO 7 7 35 24 68 %

DOMESTIC ASSAULT/SITUATION 21 16 78 52 66 %

ILLEGAL DUMPING 0 0 0 0 0 %

FOUND PROPERTY 9 10 24 21 87 %

RECOVERED PROPERTY 0 0 0 0 0 %

ANNOYING PHONE CALLS 0 0 0 0 0 %

TRESPASSING 0 0 4 1 25 %

DOA 0 0 0 0 0 %

ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 5 2 9 5 55 %

MISSING PERSON 0 0 0 0 0 %

WARRANT OBTAINED 0 0 0 0 0 %

PROPERTY-LOST 0 0 0 0 0 %

SAFEKEEPING OF WEAPON 0 0 0 0 0 %

SUICIDE AND ATTEMPTED SUICIDES 0 0 2 0 0 %

TRAFFIC - HIT & RUN 6 5 29 17 58 %

FIRES - NOT ARSON 0 0 2 1 50 %

LOST PROPERTY 0 0 0 0 0 %

NON-CRIMINAL CASE 19 13 55 39 70 %

CRIMES AGAINST FAMILY & 0 0 4 4 100 %

DRIVING WHILE IMPAIRED 3 5 17 19 111 %

LIQUOR LAW VIOLATIONS 2 2 17 8 47 %

DISORDERLY CONDUCT 4 2 13 6 46 %

OTHER CRIMES 15 12 84 68 80 %

IMPOUND /  TOW FOLLOW-UP 0 0 0 0 0 %

FALSE ALARM 0 0 0 0 0 %

MOTOR VEHICLE CRASH 42 30 175 129 73 %

THREATS 0 0 2 2 100 %

PROPERTY CRIMES, POSS, SALE, 0 0 0 0 0 %

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 8 0 34 16 47 %

179 127 753 516 68PART II OFFENSES %

240 173 982 671Grand Totals: %68

Case Assignment/Clearance Report For May,  2014 Page 2



Field Contact By Reason Summary Report
Date Range: 05/01/2014 - 05/31/2014, Agency: OWPD

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENTUser: SSPENCER, 5039 06/10/2014  12:01

Reason for Contact Count

911 Hang Up 30

False Alarm Commercial 16

False Alarm Residential 5

All Other Service Reports 10

Animal Complaints Other 24

Assist Ambulance 8

Assist To Other Dept 20

Assist Fire Dept 1

Assist Officer 1

Attempt To Locate 25

Barking Dog 9

Burning Ordinance 8

Civil Dispute 24

Code Enforcement - Owosso 2

Disturbance 9

Fight / No Assault 4

Fireworks 1

Found Property 5

Gun Permit/register 19

Harrassment 7

Investigate Vehicle 2

Lobby Walk-in 1

Loud Music 10

Loud Party 4

Open Door 1

Ordinance Violation 9

Parking Problem 20

Pawn Ticket 141

Peace Officer 13

Prowler 1

Reckless Driver 5

Recover Stolen Vehicle 1

Road Hazard 8

Page 1r_fldc2



Reason for Contact Count

Suspicious Person 26

Suspicious  Situation 50

Suspicious Vehicle 17

Trouble With Kids 29

Trouble With Neighbor 17

Trouble With Subject 66

Trash Complaint 1

Unwanted Subject 4

Vacation Check On Home 3

Vehicle Inspection 3

Warrant Arrest 1

Welfare Check 15

Wire Down 3

Work Traffic 195

Field Contact By Reason Summary Report Page 2



BURNING VIOLATIONS - CITATION ISSUED
MAY 2014

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENTUser: SSPENCER 06/10/2014 11:58:35

__________________________________________________________________________________________INCI_ID      DATE_REPT           STREET STREET

201402882    05/26/2014 21:40:57 1044     S PEARCE ST

201402955    05/29/2014 20:17:16 514      W HAMPTON ST

Page 1



BURNING VIOLATIONS - NO CITATION ISSUED
MAY 2014

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENTUser: SSPENCER 06/10/2014 11:59:53

__________________________________________________________________________________________CASE_ID      FCDATE              STREET STREET

201402330    05/04/2014 20:20:00 314      W JENNETT ST

201402493    05/11/2014 16:24:00 725      DIVISION ST

201402697    05/19/2014 17:21:00 724      N DEWEY ST

201402747    05/21/2014 16:01:00 517      W FLETCHER ST

201402812    05/23/2014 22:50:00 439      E MAIN ST

201402840    05/24/2014 21:44:00 415      W CURWOOD DR

201402870    05/26/2014 00:48:00 700      W BRADLEY ST

201402880    05/26/2014 19:20:00 1307     W MACK ST

201403014    05/31/2014 22:09:00 307      N LANSING ST

Page 1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 202 S WATER ST ·  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ·  (989)725-0580 ·  FAX (989)725-0528 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   June 12, 2014  
 
TO:  City Council 
 
FROM:  Kevin Lenkart 
  Director of Public Safety 
 
RE:  May Fire Report 
  
 
During the month of May 2014: 
 
  
 Fire Department responded to 191 Ambulance calls. 
 
            
  
 Fire Department responded to 18 Fire calls. 
 
      5 - False alarm   
   2 – Gas leak or smell   
    2 – Electrical      
    3 – Vehicle accidents 
   5 – Public Assist calls 
   1 – Dumpster fire      
              
  
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
Director of Public Safety 

Kevin Lenkart 



 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – MAY 2014 
  

1 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
OWOSSO DDA / MAIN STREET 
Council Chambers, City Hall 
May 7, 2014 – 7:30 am. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Authority Members Benjamin Frederick, Dawn Gonyou, Lance 
Omer, and Secretary Alaina Kraus 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Chairman Dave Acton, Authority Member Bill Gilbert, Ken 
Cushman, Meredith Landino, and Treasurer James Demis 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Josh Adams, DDA /Owosso Main Street Manager; Susan 
Montenegro, City of Owosso; Helen Granger, Press 
 
PUBLIC / BOARD / STAFF COMMENTS:  
 
COMMITTEE UPDATES 
1. Design – Authority Member Bill Gilbert 
Work is in progress on getting the flowers and other design projects through flower 
sponsors,  historic glasses, and other projects. 
 
2. Economic Restructuring – Authority Member Omer  
Business mentorship, recruitment, education and success story work plans are in 
the process of being written. Promoting the market study is also a focus. 
 
3. Organization – Manager Adams/Meredith Landino 
The newsletter took a hiatus over the winter but will be back monthly for the 
summer. The IB program is going forward and it is being promoted as getting your 
IB hours done before school even starts. 
 
4. Promotion – Manager Adams 
Image Builders and Business Owners are meeting regularly. There will be a new 
event called ‘Tour Our Town’ on August 23rd.  They are also working on a ‘golden 
ticket’ promotion with the SRI event in June. 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 
 
2. BUDGET REPORT. 
A small deficit is expected this year. There will be an adjusted budget available for 
voting at the June meeting. 
 
3. LOOMIS LEGAL SERVICE  
Loomis is looking into the process of tax credits coming through the DDA for the 
Wesner project and its viability with the IRS. While the cost will be absorbed by the 
contractor of work on the Wesner building, but it needs to be okayed by the DDA for 
Loomis to pursue this as well. 



 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – MAY 2014 
  

2 

 
PUBLIC / BOARD / STAFF COMMENTS:  
Fundraising possibilities like an auction were brought up. It was agreed that a 
committee needs to be willing to take this on and there need to be concrete 
examples of what the money raised would be spent on.  
 
Frederick asked about downtown parking. The understanding of others on the 
board is that a sub-committee is getting put together to start meeting after the 
National Main Street Conference in May. He also asked about a 30 minute parking 
spot on Comstock by Sunnyside floral for the rotation of customers through the 
shop. The problem is not the customers, but the owners and employees who take 
the spaces.  
 
There are a large number of spots, but need way finding to direct people to the lots. 
The wayfinding signs are in storage, but need fundraising for the inserts. Due to size 
and material the inserts are $900 a piece or $10,800 for twelve. 
 
Gonyou asked about an Owosso events list to promote to our of town visitors. 
Adams shared that that is something he would like to see. Omer said this could also 
be included in the welcome packet. 
 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
Alaina Kraus, Secretary 



	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

April Check Register  
By Check Number	  



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

1978 04/15/2014 Agnew Graphics, Si... Drinking Water Glass... Owosso Main Street Checking

04/03/2014 Drinking Water Glasses... 296-697-818.000-BED PLANTS -44.90

TOTAL -44.90

1979 04/15/2014 Kelly's Refuse Trash Service Owosso Main Street Checking

04/03/2014 Trash Service - March t... 296-200-831.000 MAINTENANCE -500.00

TOTAL -500.00

1980 04/15/2014 Lorraine Weckwert Owosso Main Street Checking

04/01/2014 reimbursement for purc... 296-697-818.000-BED PLANTS -178.85
04/01/2014 reimbursement for see... 296-697-818.000-BED PLANTS -91.48

TOTAL -270.33

1981 04/15/2014 Candence Massuch Flower Watering reim... Owosso Main Street Checking

04/15/2014 Flower Watering reimb... 296-697-818.000-BED PLANTS -112.05

TOTAL -112.05

1982 04/15/2014 Joshua Adams Manager Wages Owosso Main Street Checking

04/03/2014 Manager Wages - 3/28 ... 296-200-999.101 MANAGER WAGES -2,115.38

TOTAL -2,115.38

1985 04/25/2014 DayStarr Communic... Phone forwarding ser... Owosso Main Street Checking

04/16/2014 Phone forwarding servi... 296-200-728.000 OPER SUPPLIES -15.22

TOTAL -15.22

1986 04/25/2014 Joshua Adams Manager Wages Owosso Main Street Checking

04/25/2014 Manager Wages: 4/11/... 296-200-999.101 MANAGER WAGES -2,115.38

TOTAL -2,115.38

12:19 PM Owosso Main Street
05/05/14 Check Register - By Check Number

April 2014

Page 1



Minutes of the May 12, 2014, regular meeting 
of the Owosso Historical Commission held 

at the Gould House, 7:00 p.m. 
 

Members: Chairperson Joni Forster, members Kerry Baker, Sue Ludington, James Gutting, 
Lorraine Weckwert, Justin Parker, Elaine Greenway and Director Mitchell Speers 
 
Members Absent:  (1 vacancy) 
       
Guests Present:   
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chairperson Forster, but there was no 
quorum.  
 
7:04 Parker arrived, establishing a quorum. 
 
Chairman Forster asked for approval of the agenda, Greenway moved to approve and 
seconded by Parker and accepted. 
 
7:08 Weckwert arrived. 
 
Chairman Forster proceeded to the approval of the minutes. Weckwert noted that she had 
been listed as present in error and asked for a correction. Director Speers noted the error 
and Parker moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Greenway and accepted. 
 
The communications were brought to member’s attention, with Parker questioning an entry 
from March of 2012. Director Speers agreed to look into it. 
 
Director Speers updated members on several events and activities having taken place in the 
past month.  Items included: the addition of internet service at the castle, inventory grant 
received, a second donor has come forward to purchase a moose head, installation of a 
water heater at the castle, and a visit from the Livingston Courier Questers were among the 
items noted. 
 
Chairperson Forster directed members to updates of old business.  Greenway discussed the 
Home Tour and updated members on progress. Greenway noted the success of ad sales 
and discussed the upcoming special committee meeting to discuss the budget. 
 
Chairperson Forster noted that had been no update on the OHC Bylaws. 
 
Ludington discussed her desire to have member Gutting move forward with a website and 
noted the importance of an online presence for the historical commission.  Gutting 
demonstrated possible options for the site and Greenway moved to have Gutting and Speers 
develop a website. Ludington seconded and the motion passed.  
 
Chairperson Forster  Greenway moved to have the Curwood Castle floors repaired and 
refinished by Dick Martin of Accent Hardwood Floors, Weckwert seconded and the motion 
passed. 
 
Gutting updated members with regards to the former City Hall bell, noting that an A-frame 
support for the bell, on N. Chipman Road, was not available at this time.  Parker and Gutting 
discussed the construction of a support for the bell and Parker motioned to have the bell 
displayed at the Woodard Station location, seconded by Greenway and carried.  



 
Gutting made a motion to have the City Attorney look into the return of a carriage believed to 
have been removed from the OHC collection.  Baker seconded the motion and the motion 
passed. 
 
 
Motion by Forster  Parker to adjourn the meeting at 8:37 p.m., seconded by Gutting. 
. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,     
Mitchell Speers 
Secretary/Treasurer   
 



 draft 
Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OWOSSO ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
MAY 20, 2014 at 9:30 AM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

The meeting was called to order by Vice-Chairman Chris Eveleth at 9:31 a.m. 
 
Roll call was taken by Recording Secretary Marty Stinson. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Vice-Chairman Christopher Eveleth, Secretary Daniel Jozwiak, Board Member 
William Wascher and Alternate John Horvath. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Chairperson Randy Horton, Board Member Kent Telesz and Alternate Matt 
Grubb. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:   Ms. Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of Community 
Development; Mr. Charles P. Rau, Building Official; Mr. Kurt Mills, contractor for petitioner.   
  
AGENDA:  IT WAS MOVED BY BOARD MEMBER WASCHER AND SUPPORTED BY BOARD 
MEMBER JOZWIAK TO APPROVE THE AGENDA OF THE MEETING OF MAY 20, 2014. 
YEAS: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MINUTES:  IT WAS MOVED BY BOARD MEMBER JOZWIAK AND SUPPORTED BY BOARD 
MEMBER WASCHER TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DECEMBER 17, 2013 AS 
PRESENTED. 
YEAS: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Staff memorandum        
2. ZBA minutes from December 17, 2013      
3. Variance request materials – 615 Third Street  
4. Site map 
5. Affidavit of notice 

 
COMMISSIONER/PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:   VARIANCE REQUEST – 615 Third Street, # 2014-01 
 
The public hearing was opened at 9:33 am.  There were no comments and the hearing was closed at 
9:34 am. 
 
The contractor for the applicants, Mr. Kurt Mills, was in attendance.  Vice-chairman Chris Eveleth 
explained that the first item of business for a variance was to exam if a hardship for the property existed 
for this particular parcel of land.   
 
Mr. Mills commented that there was not room for two vehicles in the current garage on the property.  
Board Member Wascher commented that this was recently purchased property and that the owners had 
truck(s) when they purchased the property.  The garage request created reduced setbacks and would 
also create more than 25% lot coverage.  He doesn’t see a hardship.   
 
MOTION BY BOARD MEMBER JOZWIAK, SUPPORTED BY BOARD MEMBER HORVATH THAT 
THERE IS NO TRUE HARDSHIP AND THERE WOULD BE TOO MUCH LOT COVERAGE AND THAT 
THERE IS A MOTION TO FIND NO HARDSHIP  
AYES:  JOZWIAK, WASCHER, HORVATH, EVELETH 
NAYS:  NONE 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 



 draft 
Page 2 of 2 

Vice Chairman Eveleth advised Mr. Mills to contact the Building Official for some possible creative 
solutions to building a smaller garage. 
 
COMMISSIONER/PUBLIC COMMENTS:   None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
MOTION BY BOARD MEMBER WASCHER, SUPPORTED BY BOARD MEMBER HORVATH TO 
ADJOURN AT 9:45 A.M. 
YEAS: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
       Dan Jozwiak, Secretary  
 
m.m.s 
 
 
 



Draft 
 
 

___________________________ 
Parks & Recreation Commission                                                                                             
Page 1 of 2 
May 27, 2014 

Minutes 
Regular Meeting of the Parks & Recreation Commission 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
May 27, 2014 – 6 p.m. 

 
Call to order:  The meeting was called to order at 6:05 p.m. by Chairman Espich. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance:   The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all in attendance. 
 
Roll Call:   Taken by City Clerk Amy K. Kirkland. 
 
Members Present: Chairman Michael Espich, Commissioners Tim Alderman, Nikki Hathaway, and 

Kristen Woodbury.  
 
Members Absent: Vice-Chairman Jeff Selbig. 
 
Others Present: Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of Community 

Development. 
 
Approve Agenda for May 27, 2014 meeting. 
A motion to approve the agenda for the May 27, 2014 meeting was made by Commissioner 
Alderman and supported by Commissioner Woodbury. 
Ayes: all.  Motion carried. 
 
Approve Minutes from April 28, 2014 meeting: 
A motion to approve the minutes from the April 28, 2014 meeting was made by Commissioner 
Alderman and supported by Commissioner Hathaway. 
Ayes: all.  Motion carried. 
 
Public Comments:   
Liam Hathaway was in attendance with his mother.  He indicated he thought the parks were “good”. 
 
Board Comments: 
Chairperson Espich said he appreciated the efforts of all of the people that came out to help clean up the 
parks a couple of weeks ago.  He said he was particularly appreciative of the efforts from Josh Adams’ 
church group. 
 
Communications:  

1. Staff memorandum 
2. April 28, 2014 minutes 
 

Business: 
1. Green Up/Clean Up – Recap 

Ms. Montenegro reported that 45-60 volunteers showed up to clean up the City’s parks for the Green 
Up/Clean Up event.  She said the clean up was intense as there were many trees damaged by last winter’s 
ice storm creating large amounts of brush that needed to be gathered and hauled away.  She thanked all 
those that volunteered or donated to the event including VG’s, Kroger,Lance’s Bakery, Abiding in the 
Vine, the church group that volunteered and made lunch, and the DPW crews for working Saturday. 
 



Draft 
 
 

___________________________ 
Parks & Recreation Commission                                                                                             
Page 2 of 2 
May 27, 2014 

Ms. Montenegro indicated that next year she would like to use more of a team approach for the event with 
Commissioners stepping forward to coordinate certain portions of the event.  She said she would also 
appreciate any advice the Commission may have on marketing the event.  There was discussion regarding 
distributing flyers at the schools to publicize the event, “adopting” a park, connecting with National 
Honor Society students looking for volunteering opportunities, and connecting with IB students and 
Baker students. 
 

2. Bark Park Clean Up – Recap 
Commissioner Selbig was not present to provide a report on the clean up of the Bark Park, though it was 
acknowledged a large amount of brush had been removed from the park. 
 

3. Promoting Active Communities Assessment (PAC) 
Ms. Montenegro indicated the Assessment was intended to help increase the overall activity level of the 
community and covered a wide range of topics, not just parks.  She said she was hoping the Commission 
members would read over the assessment materials in preparation for more in-depth discussions to be 
scheduled for a later date.  A meeting was scheduled for June 12, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall 
Conference Room to discuss the assessment. 
 
There was discussion among the Commission members regarding funding for the parks system.  Members 
discussed establishing a budget line item in the amount of $5,000 to allow the Commission to react to 
opportunities and concerns in a more timely manner, wearing out the public’s welcome in relation to 
funding for projects, and whether the Commission could levy a millage to support the parks. 
 
There was further discussion regarding the Community Gardens and the status of the waiver required for 
use of the gardens, the status of the splash pad, and whether it could be functional in time for Daniel 
Vargas’s wedding on Saturday. 
 
Public / Board Comments:   None 
 
Adjournment: 
A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Commissioner Woodbury and was supported by 
Commissioner Alderman.  The meeting adjourned at 6:38 p.m.  
Ayes: all.  Motion carried.  
 
       _____________________________ 
akk        Susan Montenegro, Secretary 



draft 
 

 
Planning Commission –May 27, 2014 

Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OWOSSO PLANNING COMMISSION 

Council Chambers, City Hall 
May 27, 2014 – 7:00 pm 

 
CALL TO ORDER:    Meeting was called to order at 7:03 p.m. by Chairman William Wascher. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all in attendance. 
 
ROLL CALL:     Roll Call was taken by City Clerk Amy K. Kirkland. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Chairman William Wascher, Secretary Tom Kurtz, Commissioners David 

Bandkau, Michael O’Leary, Brent Smith, and Randy Woodworth 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Vice-Chairman Frank Livingston, Commissioners Thomas Taylor and 

Craig Weaver.  
 
OTHERS PRESENT:   Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of Community 

Development; Ryan Henry, Kincaid Henry Group; Jeff Deason, 
Shiawassee Regional Chamber of Commerce President/CEO; and Justin 
Horvath, Shiawassee Economic Development Partnership. 

 
AGENDA APPROVAL:   
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER BANDKAU, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER KURTZ TO APPROVE 
THE AGENDA FOR MAY 27, 2014.  
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MINUTES APPROVAL: 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER KURTZ, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO APPROVE THE 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2014 AS PRESENTED. 
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Staff memorandum       
2. PC minutes from April 28, 2014 
3. East Main Street Map Changes 
4. Public Hearing Notice 
5. Conceptual parking lot drawings for DIG 

 
COMMISSIONER / PUBLIC COMMENTS:   NONE 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:   
 
1.  EAST MAIN STREET REZONING 
 
The public hearing was opened for comment. 
 
Reynold Batteen, owner of home at 515 East Main Street, inquired why the rezoning was being proposed 
if no one had petitioned for it, he also inquired how the property at 525 East Main was rezoned without his 
knowledge, and what value the rezoning would be to him.  He said he felt the new zoning designation 
would negatively affect the value of his property and he didn’t see the need for changes.  Commission 
Chair Wascher and Commissioner Woodworth indicated the change in rezoning was proposed to bring 
the area into compliance with the Master Plan adopted in 2012, reduce spot zoning issues, and establish 
consistent zoning for future potential development.  It was further indicated all existing purposes may 
remain and any new zoning designation would only become effective if the purpose of the property 
changes. 



draft 
 

 
Planning Commission –May 27, 2014 

Page 2 of 4 

 
Randy Smith, owner of 830 East Main Street, inquired whether his taxes would be affected by a change 
in zoning.  He said he too, didn’t see the need to change the zoning and felt that allowing business 
development along that stretch of the highway would increase traffic problems.  Chairperson Wascher 
noted that his taxes would remain the same and said any new development along that stretch would need 
to present a site plan to the Commission for review and the Commission would have the authority to 
demand changes if it is felt traffic issues would be increased.  He also noted that the changes proposed 
are for the future, the affects will not be seen tomorrow. 
 
Cathy Schmidtfrantz, owner of 828 East Main Street, inquired whether she would be able to rebuild her 
house if it were to burn.  Commission members noted that her lot is not proposed for rezoning, but if it 
was and her home burned it could potentially be rebuilt using a waiver process that has been established. 
 
There was free discussion between citizens and Commission members regarding whether homes in the 
proposed rezoning area could be rebuilt under various circumstances. 
 
Gary Schmidtfrantz, owner of 828 East Main Street, inquired whether he as a property owner would have 
any say in the site plan of a business if one were to move next door to him.  Chairperson Wascher 
indicated the property next door would not revert to the commercial zoning designation until the home on 
the property is gone and all proposed site plans would be presented to the Planning Commission for 
review.  He further noted that he could appeal any decisions of the Planning Commission to an appeals 
board. 
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
SITE PLAN REVIEW:  NONE. 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS:    
 
1.  East Main Street Rezoning – Washington Street to Gould Street 
 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER WOODWORTH, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER KURTZ THAT THE 
OWOSSO PLANNING COMMISSION FIND THE PROPOSED ZONING OF THE PARCELS IN QUEST 
TO MEET THE STANDARDS OF THE ZONING CODE, HEREBY RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF THE 
REZONING OF THE FOLLOWING PROPERTIES TO THE OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL: 

 
Address      Current Zoning      Proposed Zoning 

515 East Main R2 OS1 
615 East Main RM1 B1 
617 East Main OS1 B1 
827 East Main OS1 B4 
831 East Main OS1 B4 
835 East Main RM1 B4 
508 East Main RM1 OS1 
512 East Main RM1 OS1 
830 East Main RM1 B4 
832 East Main RM1 B4 
834 East Main RM1 B4 
910 East Main B1 B4 

 
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chairperson Wascher noted that the item would be forwarded to City Council for a second public hearing 
and final consideration. 
 
 



draft 
 

 
Planning Commission –May 27, 2014 

Page 3 of 4 

ITEMS OF DISCUSSION:   
 
1.  Review of conceptual drawings for DIG parking lots as pertaining to the Master Plan 
 
City Manager Donald Crawford relayed the details of the DIG grant to the Commission as follows:  the 
grant is for more than $650,000, the City must match $125,000, and the DDA must match $225,000, all 
construction must be completed by November 30th or the money is forfeited.  City Manager Crawford said 
the item was being presented to the Commission now because the area proposed for construction is 
included in the Master Plan.    He went on to detail the proposed improvements for the parking lot on 
Curwood Castle Drive and the parking lot south of the Armory.   
 
The Castle parking lot improvements are relatively straight-forward involving the closure of a portion of 
Bradley Street to allow the enlargement of the current lot, paving the current lot, providing screening 
around the lot, installing speed bumps on Curwood Castle Drive to discourage people trying to avoid the 
light at Main and Shiawassee, creation of a bus loading zone, and installing lighting. 
 
Piper Brewer of the Arts Council had questions regarding the lighting of the Curwood Castle Drive lot, if 
the grade of the lot would be changed, and if the closure of a portion of Bradley Street would cause traffic 
congestion when there are events in the park.  She also asked if the proposed bus parking could be 
moved to an area that was accessible by both patrons of the Castle and patrons of the Arts Center. 
 
Commissioner O’Leary inquired whether the flood plain was involved in the project.  It was noted certain 
areas had been intentionally avoided to keep the projects free of flood plain issues.  It was further noted 
the existing storm sewer would be utilized to drain the Curwood Castle lot and a small retention pond was 
proposed for the Armory lot. 
 
The proposed improvements for the Armory lot will be broken into two phases with all items related to the 
river in one project and the remaining items, including the Armory parking lot, in the other.  He indicated 
the parking lot would be repaved and marked for 78 spots to maximize use of the area, screening similar 
to that found around the Exchange Street lot will be erected, and updated lighting installed.  Drainage for 
the lot is proposed in the form of a small retention pond in one corner of the lot.  A pavilion, bike racks, 
and kayak storage are also proposed along the riverfront.   
 
Ryan Henry, of Kincaid Henry Building Group, said he was concerned and confused by the current plan 
for the Armory parking lot saying he thought his developments were going to benefit directly from the DIG 
grant.  He distributed copies of the conceptual drawings that were included in the City’s DIG grant 
application and said he felt the current plan is not consistent with the grant application and would not work 
with the plans they have drawn for the Armory.  He said he felt the DIG grant requires the City to build a 
large pavilion, a new retaining wall, and coordinate the proposed developments at the Armory and 
Matthews Building. 
 
City Manager Crawford indicated the City had submitted conceptual drawings with the DIG application but 
the plans were fluid, there is a need to move immediately to fulfill the time requirements of the grant and 
the Armory redevelopment is not as far along as was originally planned.  He said the City wants to see 
the redevelopment of the adjoining buildings tied together with the parking lot improvements and he 
respects the fact there are details that have to be worked out with the grantor but he is also cognizant that 
neither the redevelopment of the Armory nor the Matthews Building is entirely assured and he has a duty 
to ensure that the taxpayers of Owosso do not get left holding the bag should one of those projects not 
come to fruition. 
 
There was significant discussion regarding the early conceptual drawings and the latest proposed 
drawings.   
 
Chairperson Wascher ended the discussion saying he wasn’t sure why the item was brought before the 
Commission as they had no authority in the matter.  He encouraged the City and the developers to work 
out the issues worked out. 
 



draft 
 

 
Planning Commission –May 27, 2014 

Page 4 of 4 

COMMISSIONER / PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
City Councilman Burton Fox said he had not heard the Armory project was a definite go and he knew the 
DIG grant projects had to be finished by the end of the year or the money would have to be returned.  He 
said it seems as if “everyone thinks that everyone else is in the wrong” and he would like to see more 
communication between the Chamber and the City.  He said he would be thrilled to see the Armory 
redeveloped and was happy to hear there was a proposal to redevelop the Matthews Building.  He said 
as a citizen of the City he wanted the parties to reach a resolution and suggested the Chamber pledge to 
pay back the DIG grant funds if the City ties its projects to the Armory redevelopment as requested and 
the development doesn’t go through. 
 
Jeff Deason, CEO of the Shiawassee Regional Chamber of Commerce, said they have made every effort 
to include the City in their development discussions.  They are trying to secure financing as soon as 
possible but such activities take time.  He said he was sad things had gotten this contentious and 
suggested all the parties sit down together to reach a resolution.   
 
Chairperson Wascher said he thought the project was a great idea but the parties involved need to get 
together to make it work, the Planning Commission is powerless to anything at this point. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER KURTZ, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, TO ADJOURN AT 
8:43 P.M.  
YEAS ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
      
      ________________________________________ 
      Tom Kurtz, Secretary 
akk 
 


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	140602CouncilMinutes

	STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORT
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1 OrdinanceAmendment-Curfews

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	1 Baker College Diesel Class Recognition
	2 Toppermost Benefit

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CITY MANAGER REPORT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1-6 SpecialAssessments-Alleys
	7 FirstReading&SetPublicHearing-RezoningOfEastMainStreet
	8 FirstReading&SetPublicHearing-OfficeOverlayDistrict
	9 Boards and Commissions Appointments
	10 2014-15Water&SewerRates
	11 ChangeOrderNo1-DIGPart2
	12 ContractRenewal-GeneralEngineeringServices
	13 ProfessionalServicesAgreement-NorthStreetCulvertReplacementProject
	14 PurchaseAuthorization-WebPortal
	15-17 BidAwards-AnnualChemicalPurchase
	18 BidAward-SaleOfUsedStreetSweeper
	19 Warrant483

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1 2013-14 City Budget Amendment
	2 EarlyStartTime
	3 OsburnLakesDevelopmentInformationA
	4 PropertySale-1120-70Juniper-21-dayPosting

	COMMUNICATIONS
	1 JParker-ResignationLetter
	2 PoliceReport-May2014
	3 FireReport-May2014
	4 DDAMinutes-140507
	5 HistoricalCommissionMinutes-140512
	6 ZBAMinutes-140520
	7 Parks&RecreationMinutes-140527
	8 PlanningCommissionMinutes-140527

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



